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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Governors
Caribbean Development Bank

We have audited the accompanying financial statements ofOtdénary Capital Resources of the
Caribbean Development Bank(“the Bank”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at

31 December 2011, and the related statements of income, statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial position of the
Ordinary Capital Resourcesof the Bank as at 31 December 2011, and of its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Bridgetown
BARBADOS
7 March 2012



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As of December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

Assets
Cash resources
Cash and cash equivalents - Note F

Investments
Debt securities at fair value through profit or loss
- Note G

Loans
Loans outstanding — Note H

Derivative financial instruments — Note |

Cross currency interest rate swaps — Note | 127,680

Maintenance of value on currency holdings

—Notes land K 1,121
Receivable from members

Non-negotiable demand notes - Note J 44,363

Subscriptions in arrears 15,975

Receivables other — Note L

Other assets
Property and equipment - Note M

Total assets

Restated

2011 2010
$79,163 $9,434
244,242 103,212
1,007,537 993,548
96,691

998

128,801 97,689
60,338 45,618
14,625 11,048
8,419 8,305
$1,543,125 $1,268,854

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ...continued
As of December 31, 2011
(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )
Restated
2011 2010
Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - Note N $2,200 $1,903
Subscriptions in advance 5,172 6,207
Deferred income 875 875
Post-employment benefit obligations - Note P 2,598 1,832
Derivative financial instruments
Maintenance of value on currency holdings — Notasd K 193 297
Borrowings
Short term facility 20,000 -
Long-term borrowings - Note Q 837,875 653,240
Total Liabilities 868,913 664,354
Equity
Capital stock — Note R
Authorised capital — 312,971 (2010 — 312,971) share
Subscribed capital — 239,643 (2010 — 146,022) share 1,501,892 937,193
Less callable capital — 187,032 (2010 — 113,758)esh 1,170,887 (730,433)
Paid-up capital — 52,611 (2010 — 32,263) shares 331,005 206,760
Less subscriptions not yet matured 144,644 49,327
Subscriptions matured 186,361 157,433
Retained earnings and Reserves — Note R 487,851 449,340
Total Equity 674,212 606,773
Total Liabilities and Equity $1,543,125 $1,271,127

Approved on March 7, 2012 by:

W™. Warren Smith

Presiden

Adrian T. Debique
Director (Ag), Finance & Corporate
Planning

The accompanying notes form an integral part ofetfanancial statements.
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

Balance at January 1, 2010

Total comprehensive income for the year as
previously reported

Prior period adjustment

As restated

Balance at December 31, 2010 - restated
Balance at January 1, 2011

Issued Share Capital

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at December 31, 2011

Capital Retained
Stock  Earnings Reserves Total

$157,433  $393,990 $14,110 $565,533
] 41,240 - 41,240
- (2,273) - (2,273)

- 38,967 - 38,967
$157,433 $432,957 $14,110 $604,500
$157,433 $432,957 $14,110 $604,500
28,928 - - 28,928

- 40,784 - 40,784
$186,361 $473,741 $14,110 $674,212

The accompanying notes form an integral part afeHfanancial statements.



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

Interest and similar income
Loans — Note S
Investments and cash balances

Interest expense and similar charges
Borrowings
Other financial (income) expenses - Note S

Net interest income

Other (income)/expenses
Other income
Realized and unrealized fair value losses
Provision for loan losses — Note H
Administrative expenses — Note T
Foreign exchange translation
Derivative fair value adjustment — Note U

Total comprehensive income for the year

The accompanying notes form an integral part afeHanancial statements.

2011

$40,582

2,667

43,249

10,347

(2,822)
7,525

35,724

(127)
910
3,000
10,183
12,912

(31,938)

(5,060)

$40,784

Restated
2010

$42,662
3,757

46,419

11,685
(3,514)

8,171

38,248

(307)
371

10,168
27,870
(38,821

(719)

$38,967




CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

Restatec
2011 2C1C
Operating activities:
Comprehensive income for the y $40,78¢ 38,96
Adjustments
Unrealzed loss on debt securit 1,01 61C
Depreciatiol 1,453 1,44
Gain on disposal cfixed assel 11 -
Derivative fair value adjustme (31,939 (38,82)
Interest incom (42249 (46,419
Interest expen: 7,52¢ 8,171
Provision for losses on los 3,00( -
Total cash flowswused it operatincactivities before changes i
operating assets and liabilit (21,401) (36,049
Changes in operating assets and liabili
(Increas)/decreas in othelreceivabls (3,579) 6,89¢
Increas in accounts payak 1,06: 6,512
Net (ircreas)/decreas in debt securities at fair val
through profit and lo¢ (141,737) 135,79t
Cash(used in/from operating activitie (165,652 113,16:
Disbursementmadeon loan: (94,86 (246,35
Principal repayments to the Bank on Ic 77,30¢ 70,79:
Interest receive 43,51 47,88t
Interest pai (7,219 (8,65¢6)
Net caslused in operating activiti (146,9179) (23,189
Investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipn (1,567 (1,319
Proceeds from sale of property and equipi 11 -
Net cash used in investing activif (1,55¢) (1,319
Financing activities:
Borrowings
Drawdown: 225,21t 86,12¢
Repayment (32,649 (177,507
Capital subscriptior 28,92¢ -
Increase in amounts required to maintain the v
currency holding (1,262) (252
Increas in other receivables from memb (14,72 (934,
Net cash provide/(used in by financing activitie 205,51: (92,567
Netincreas/decreas in cash and cash equivale 57,04C (117,074
Net foreign exchange differer 12,68¢ 27,98¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 9,43¢ 98,51¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of 79,16: 9,43¢

The accompanying notes form an integral part afeHaancial statements.
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

NOTE A-NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Caribbean Development Bank (CDB) or (the “Bank’an international organization established by
an Agreement (Charter) signed in Kingston, JamainaQctober 18, 1969 and accepted and ratified by
all the member countries which are signatoriesetioerThe Charter entered into force on January 26,
1970 and CDB commenced operations on January 3. 1S8ince that time other countries became
members of CDB by acceding to the Charter. The €h#s an international treaty which, together with
the instruments of ratification and accession bynimer countries, has been deposited with the United
Nations Secretary-General. CDB was established wegianal financial institution for the purpose of
contributing to the harmonious economic growth aw®Velopment of the member countries in the
Caribbean (Region), special and urgent regardegm#eds of the Less Developed Countries (LDCs) of
the Region. The Bank’s headquarters is located iilday in the parish of Saint Michael in the islaoid
Barbados.

The membership of the Bank is open to (a) StatdsTanritiories of the region; (b) non-regional gt
which are members of the United Nations or of ahytoospecialized agencies or of the International
Atomic Energy Agency; and (c) other Multilaterah\2éopment Banks.

The membership of the Bank is comprised of 21 mgjistates and territories and 5 non-regional state
detailed listing of the membership is provided até\R.

Reducing poverty in the region is CDB’s main objst CDB'’s funding activities are carried out t8 i
Borrowing Member Countries and these are financedhly through its shareholder fund which is
referred to as its Ordinary Capital Resources (OQR)advancing this objective, the Bank partiogsain

the selection, study and preparation of project#ridmiting to such development and where necessary,
provides technical assistance.

The OCR is supplemented by the Special Developients (SDF) and Other Special Funds (OSF) and
these are separate entities with distinct assatsliabilities. There is no recourse to the OCR for
obligations in respect of any of the SDF or OShilies.

Mobilizing financial resources is an integral paffCDB’s operational activities. In addition, CD&pne

or jointly, administers on behalf of donors, indhgl members, their agencies and other development
institutions, funds restricted for specific usesjeh include technical assistance grants as wekgisnal
programmes.

CDB finances its ordinary operations through boings, paid-in capital and retained earnings.

Where the amendment to the financial statememntstisis a consequence of a fundamental change in the
operational performance of the Bank, the prior apak of the Board of Governors would not be recplire

NOTE B-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in thegaration of these financial statements are set out

below. These policies have been consistently agpd all the years presented, except otherwisedsta
Prior year comparatives have been amended to ragent year presentation.

-7 -



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

NOTE B-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. continued

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared ordacice with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and have been prepared underigtai¢al cost basis, except as modified by the
revaluation of investment securities held at faatue through profit or loss and derivative finahcia
instruments which have been reflected at fair value

The financial statements comprise the statemefiinahcial position, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity, thiersent of cash flows and the notes to the financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 20& ¥dfiorting date).

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith IFRS requires management to make estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgemmethe process of applying the Bank’s accounting
policies. Changes in assumptions may have a &gnifimpact on the financial statements in theogger
the assumptions changed. Management believeththanderlying assumptions are appropriate and that
the Bank’s financial statements, therefore, pretimfinancial position fairly. Areas involvingragher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas whesi@aptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements are disclosed in Note D.

Standards, amendments and interpretations not yetfeective but will be relevant to the Bank

IFRS 9 Financial instruments part 1: Classificatiand measurement-RS 9 was issued in November
2009 and replaces those parts of IAS 39 relatirtgecclassification and measurement of financiaéts
Key features are as follows:

* Financial assets are required to be classifieitwo measurement categories: those to be megsu
subsequently at fair value, and those to be medsuiesequently at amortized cost. The decision is t
be made at initial recognition. The classificatd#pends on the entity’s business model for managing
its financial instruments and the contractual dé&sh characteristics of the instrument.

* An instrument is subsequently measured at tiredrcost only if it is a debt instrument and btita
objective of the entity’s business model is to hibid asset to collect the contractual cash flowd, a
the asset's contractual cash flows represent cayynents of principal and interest (that is, it baty
‘basic loan features’). All other debt instrumeate to be measured at fair value through profibss.



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

NOTE B-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. continued

Standards, amendments and interpretations not yetfiective but will be relevant to the
Bank...continued

All equity instruments are to be measungasgquently at fair value. Equity instruments trat held

for trading will be measured at fair value throygbfit or loss. For all other equity investments, a
irrevocable election can be made at initial rectignj to recognize unrealized and realized faiugal
gains and losses through other comprehensive incather than profit or loss. There is to be no
recycling of fair value gains and losses to profitoss. This election may be made on an instrument
by-instrument basis. Dividends are to be preseintguofit or loss, as long as they represent armetu
on investment.

While adoption of IFRS 9 is mandatory frordahuary 2015, earlier adoption is permitted.

The Bank is considering the implications of thendtrd, the impact on the Bank and thming of its
adoption by the Bank.

Standards, amendments and interpretations effectiveon or after January 1, 2011 and are not
relevant to the Bank

ISA 24 (Amendment), Related Party Disclosures

IAS 31 (Amendment), Interests in Joint Ventures

IAS 39 (Amendment), Eligible Financial InstrumerfR&cognition and Measurement
IAS 41 (Amendment), Agriculture

IFRS 7 (Amendment), Financial Instruments, Disctesu

IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes

IFRIC 17, Distributions of Non-Cash Assets to Ovener

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

The functional and presentation currency of thekBarthe United States dollar and the Bank’s financ
statements are rounded to the nearest thousandsetsAand liabilities in currencies other than é&thit
States dollars are translated into United Statdkrdoat market rates of exchange prevailing at the
reporting date.

Foreign currency transactions are translated intibeld States dollars at applicable rates of exchang
the transaction dates. Any gains or losses ariing result of differences in rates applied tonme and
expenses and to assets and liabilities are shovam &xchange gain or loss in the determinationedf n
income for the year.



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

NOTE B-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. continued
Taxation

Article 55 of the Agreement establishing the Bataltes that the Bank, its assets, property, incamdata
operations and transactions are exempt from adttiaxation.

Financial assets

In accordance with IAS 39, the Bank categorizesaisets as follows: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and loans and receivableémancial assets and financial liabilities are groped

on the statement of financial position when thekBassumes related contractual rights or obligatamds
derecognized when the rights to secure cash flows the financial asset expire or when all riskd an
rewards of ownership have been substantially temresd. Management determines the classification of
its financial instruments at initial recognition.

() Financial assets at fair value through profit osto

This category has two sub-categories: financiag¢tasseld for trading and those designated at &lues
through profit or loss at inception.

A financial asset is classified as held for tradihig is acquired principally for the purpose dlling in
the near term or if it is part of a portfolio okidtified financial instruments that are manageetiogr and
for which there is evidence of recent actual pattef short-term profit-taking. Derivatives are als
categorized as held for trading unless they argdated as hedging instruments.

Financial assets designated at fair value througfitr loss upon initial recognition are managed
evaluated on a fair value basis and reported tatk@yagement on that basis. Once the asset hasbeen
classified, it cannot be changed. Financial imstrnts in this category are included in the statéroén
financial position as ‘Debt securities at fair valilhrough profit and loss’. For 2011 and 2010 afihe
Bank’s investments are designated at fair valueutdin profit and loss.

Financial assets carried at fair value through ipmf loss are initially recognized at fair valuend
transaction costs are expensed in the profit ferydlar in the statement of comprehensive income.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the falmevof financial assets through profit or loss are
included in the profit for the year in the statemehcomprehensive income in the period in whicéyth
arise.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial aasétdér value through profit or loss are recogdins
the trade date which is the date the Bank commitchase or sell the asset.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finaresakets that have fixed or determinable payments tha
are not quoted in an active market. After initiabasurement, loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effectiveasteate method less any impairment. Interesimec

is recognized by applying the effective interesteraexcept for short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

-10 -



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

NOTE B-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. continued
(c) Derivatives recorded at fair value through pteid loss

The Bank uses derivatives such as cross currenesest rate swaps and forward exchange contracts in
its borrowing and liability management activitiestake advantage of cost-saving opportunities and t
lower its funding costs. Derivatives are recordethir value and carried as assets when theivédire is
positive and as liabilities when their fair valigernegative. Changes in the fair value of derivatiaee
included in “Derivative fair value adjustment”.

(d) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities consist of long term borrows) for which the fair value option is not appliedd are
measured at amortized cost. Borrowings are recegdniaitially at fair value net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated atréred cost; any difference between proceeds het o
transaction costs and the redemption value is rézed in the profit for the year in the statemeht o
comprehensive income over the period of the bomgw/iusing the effective interest rate method.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when theigatlon under the liability is discharged, cancelte
expires.

Determination of fair value

For financial instruments traded in active markétg, determination of fair values is based on qiliote
market prices or dealer price quotations. A finahtistrument is regarded as quoted in an activéaeha
if prices are readily and regularly available fram exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, micin
service or regulatory agency, and those priceesemt actual and regularly occurring market traisae
on an arm’s length basis. If the above criteriarartemet, the market is regarded as being inactive.

For all other financial instruments, including deatives, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques. In these techniques, fair values afienated from observable data in respect of similar
financial instruments, using models to estimatepitesent value of expected future cash flows, berot
valuation techniques, using inputs (for exampleB@QR vyield curve, FX rates, volatilities and
counterparty spreads) existing at the reporting.dat

The Bank uses widely recognized valuation modefsdetermining fair values of non-standardized
financial instruments such as options or interatd and currency swaps. For these financial ingrnis
inputs into models are generally market-observable.

An analysis of fair values of financial instrumeigsprovided in Note C — Risk Management — “Fair
value of financial assets and liabilities”.

-11 -



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

NOTE B-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. continued
Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset andnieamount reported in the statement of finarpasition
when there is a legally enforceable right to offdet recognized amounts and there is an intention t
settle on a net basis, or realize the asset atld gat liability simultaneously.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognized intétensent of comprehensive income for all interest-
bearing instruments using the effective interetst naethod based on the actual purchase price.

The effective interest rate is the rate that eyaditbcounts estimated future cash payments orptxei
through the expected life of the financial instrunner, when appropriate, a shorter period to the ne
carrying amount of the financial asset or finanbaility.

Once a financial asset or a group of financial taskas been written down as a result of an impaitme
loss, interest income is recognized using the ahteterest used to discount the future cash flewshe
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The astichfuture cash flows projected in the effective
interest rate method consider all contractual tdyaigio not consider future credit losses.

Commitment fee income
Fees are generally recognized on an accrual b&ss the service has been provided.
Impairment of financial assets

CDB assesses at each reporting date whether thet®ective evidence that a financial asset or giu
financial assets is impaired. A financial assea@roup is impaired and impairment losses areriadu
if, and only if, there is objective evidence of iamment as a result of one or more events thatroedu
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “l@sgent”) and that loss event (or events) has amanpn
the estimated future cash flows of the financialear group of financial assets that can be rgliab
estimated. Objective evidence that a financiabtaes groups of financial assets are impaired hesu
observable data that comes to the attention dBérk about the following loss events:

® significant financial difficulty of the issuer obtigor;
(i) a breach of contract, such as a default or delimcyu@ interest or principal payments;

(iii) the Bank granting to the borrower, for economidegial reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, a concession that the Bankulebnot otherwise consider;

(iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enteankruptcy or other financial
reorganization;

(V) the disappearance of an active financial marketHat financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

-12 -



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

NOTE B-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. continued

Impairment of financial assets..continued

(vi) observable data indicating that there is a meatuddcrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a group of financial assets since th#@ahrecognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with theviddal financial asset in the group,
including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of borromers;

— national or local economic conditions that corelatth defaults on the assets in the
portfolio.

A provision for loan impairment is establishedhéte is objective evidence that the Bank will netble

to collect all amounts due according to the origioantractual terms of loans. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset'sytay value and the present value of expected cash
flows, including amounts recoverable from guarastaed collateral, discounted at the financial &sset
original effective interest rate. The carrying ambwf the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss mgrazed in the statement of comprehensive income.

The methodology used for assessing portfolio inmpaitt for sovereign risk assets takes into accdnt t
Bank’s preferred creditor status afforded by memberhis provision is calculated on an incurredslos
basis. Any impairment is deducted from the asstgories on the statement of financial position.

The Bank assesses whether objective evidence d@iiment exists individually for loans to the prigat
sector and collectively for loans to the publicteec Impairment, less any amount reversed dufirey t
year, is charged to the statement of comprehemsomme. When a loan is deemed uncollectible, it is
written off against the related impairment prowsio If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases, and the decrease castabed objectively to an event after the impairmen
was recognized, the previously recognized impaitrtass, is reversed by adjusting the provision amou
and the amount of the reversal is recognized irstai@ment of comprehensive income.

Renegotiated loans

Where possible, the Bank seeks to restructure logther than take possession of collateral. Thig ma
involve extending the payment arrangements andagneement of new loan conditions. Management
continuously reviews renegotiated loans to enshiag &ll criteria are met and that future paymemgs a
likely to occur.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at historicdllees depreciation. Historical cost includes exixeire
that is directly attributable to the acquisitiontioé items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s ngrgfinount or are recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that futuceremic benefits associated with the item will floav

the Bank and the cost of the item can be relialdpsared. All repairs and maintenance are chamed t
other operating expenses during the financial yreatich they are incurred.

-13-



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

NOTE B-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. continued

Property and equipment..continued

Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to havadsiinite life. Depreciation of other assets lisyided
on the straight-line basis at rates consideredwstedo write-off the cost of the assets, lessaggyover
their useful lives as follows:

Years
Buildings and ancillary works 15-25
Furniture and equipment 4-8
Computers 4
Motor vehicles 4

The assets’ residual value and useful lives ariewsd and adjusted if appropriate at each repodatg.
Assets that are subject to amortization are reuilefee impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying mount n@tybe recoverable. Where the carrying amountof a
asset is greater than its estimated recoverableiatmio is written down immediately to its recoviela
amount. The asset’s recoverable amount is thHeehigf the impaired asset’s fair value less castsetl
and the value in use.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by aangpproceeds with the carrying amount. These ar
included in the other operating expenses in thersi@ant of comprehensive income.

Deferred income

The deferred income relates to a Government gramraperty. This property is freehold land with
indefinite life and is therefore not subject to degation.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flowsh ead cash equivalents comprise balances with less
than three months’ maturity from the date of adtjois, including cash, treasury bills and othegidie
bills, loans and advances to banks, amounts duedtber banks and short-term government securities.

Commitments and contingencies

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claares recognized when: the Bank has a present ¢egal
constructive obligation as a result of past events, more likely than not that an outflow of resces
will be required to settle the obligation; and #mount has been reliably estimated. The Bank rézegn
no provisions for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligationg, likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the cléssbbgations as a whole. A provision is recognized
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respeotdany one item included in the same class of ofitiga
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value @Xbenditures expected to settle the obligationgiie
rate that reflects current market assessmentseofiiie value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due tsspge of time is recognized as interest expense.
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

NOTE B-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. continued
Post-employment benefits

(&) Pension obligations

CDB has both a contributory defined benefit New df@m Plan (the “Plan”) and a hybrid Old Pension
Scheme (the “Scheme”) for securing pensions angk dithnefits for eligible employees of the Bank.iBot
the Plan and the Scheme are final salary defineéflteBoth the Plan and the Scheme are managed by
Trustees which are appointed by both the manageofiehé Bank and staff.

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan having tettras specify the amount of pension benefits to be
provided at future date or after a certain peribtne; the amount specified usually is a functafrone
or more factors such as age, years of servicecamgpensation.

The liability recognized in the statement of fineh@osition in respect of defined benefit pensianglis

the present value of the defined benefit obligatiothe reporting date less the fair value of plasets
together with adjustments for unrecognized actugains or losses and past service costs. Indepénde
actuaries using the projected unit credit methdcutate the defined benefit obligation at least everge
years. The present value of the defined benefigafntin is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates of highlity corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, andt thave terms to maturity approximating the terms of
the related pension liability. For intermediateang the defined benefit obligation is estimatenhgis
approximate actuarial roll-forward techniques thiéww for additional benefit accrual, actual cakiwk
and changes in the underlying actuarial assumptions

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experiemdjeistments and changes in actuarial assumptions in
excess of-the-greater of 10% of the value of ttan Rissets or 10% of the defined benefit obligatien ar
charged or credited to income over the employeg®&ed average remaining working lives. In theeca

of the hybrid scheme, gains and losses are imnegiaécognized in income. Past-service costs are
recognized immediately in administrative expensasless the changes to the Pension Plan are
conditional on the employees remaining in servareaf specified period of time (the vesting periotlj.

this case, the past-service costs are amortizedstraight-line basis over the vesting period.

The Scheme is a hybrid scheme providing the merabeetirement with a choice between a defined
benefit or a pension calculated on a defined befefmula.
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NOTE B-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. continued
Post—employment benefits (continued)

(b) Other post-retirement obligations

The Bank provides post-retirement medical bendditds retirees. The expected costs of these hisnef
are accrued over the period using an accountingadetogy similar to that for defined benefit pemsio
plans. Actuarial gains and losses arising fromeegmce adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions in excess of-the-greater of 10% of/éhee of the Plan assets or 10% of the defined lienefi
obligation are charged or credited to income oherémployees’ expected average remaining working
lives. Independent qualified actuaries value thas@ations annually by using the projected unédit
method. The present value of the defined benefigafion is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows (relating to service accrumthe reporting date) using the yields availabléhigy-
guality corporate bonds.

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employmenteiminated by the Bank before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepisteoy redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Bank recognizes termination benefits when demonstrably committed to either: terminating the
employment of current employees according to aildetformal plan without possibility of withdrawal,
or providing termination benefits as a result of @fer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months afterréporting date are discounted to their presentevalu

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts thagtiine the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs becauspegified debtor fails to make payments when due,
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognized &salality in the financial statements at fair valoa the

date the guarantee was given. The fair value dhan€ial guarantee at the time of signature is zero
because all guarantees are agreed on arm’s leargtis and the value of the premium agreed correspond
to the value of the guarantee obligation. Subsegteemitial recognition, the Bank’s liabilities der
such guarantees are measured at the higher ofitfeé amount, less amortization of fees, and thetb
estimate of the amount required to settle the gueea These estimates are determined based on
experience supplemented by the judgement of marexgerihe fee income earned is recognized on a
straight line basis over the life of the guarantee.

Valuation of Capital Stock

In the Agreement establishing the Bank (the Agredimehe capital stock of the Bank is expressed in
terms of United States dollars of the weight angkrfiess in effect on September 1, 1969 (the 1969
dollar). However, with effect from April 1, 197&)e Second Amendment to the Articles of Agreement
of the International Monetary Fund came into forag,a result of which currencies no longer have par
values in terms of gold. Prior to December 1986,Bank had not taken a decision on the implicatio

of this change on the valuation of its capital ktand had translated its capital stock into curtémited
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NOTE B-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. continued

Valuation of Capital Stock...continued

States dollars at the rate of 1.206348 currentddnBtates dollars (current dollars) per 1969 dolan
December 11, 1986, the Board of Directors of thelkBagreed that, until such time as the Agreement
may be amended in respect of the standard of viiieegxpression "United States dollars of the weigh
and fineness in effect on September 1, 1969" mpreted, pursuant to Article 59 of the Agreemémt,
mean the "Special Drawing Right" (SDR) introducgdlte International Monetary Fund as the SDR was
valued in terms of United States dollars immedyatedfore the introduction of the basket method of
valuing the SDR on July 1, 1974, such value bei29@348 current dollars for one SDR as at June 30,
1974 (the 1974 SDR).

For the purposes of the financial statements, #wekBhas expressed the value of its capital stocthen
basis of the 1974 SDR. This has no effect orfittencial position or results of the operationstlod
Bank.

The Agreement permits the Bank to accept from a Ioeemon-negotiable, non-interest bearing demand
notes in place of part of the member's subscriptiothe paid-up capital which shall be payableha t
member's currency and maintenance of value in ceggesuch part, provided that such currency is not
required for the conduct of the operations of tlaalB

Maintenance of value

In order to ensure that capital receipts due irerothan US dollars retain at a minimum their vedise
determined in accordance with Article 24 of the égnent, each member is required to maintain the
value of its currency held by the Bank and consisthf or derived as repayments of principal from
currencies originally paid to the Bank by the memhbeaespect of capital subscriptions. In the apinof

the Bank, where the value of a Member’'s currenqyelgates or appreciates to a significant extdueat, t
Bank or Member may be required to repay an amolotimency equal to the increase or decrease in the
value of its currency which is held by the Bank@spect of capital subscriptions. For the purpades
effecting settlement, MOV obligations are estaldsitat December 31 in each year. The Board of
Directors has agreed that MOV obligations on anyt md a member’s paid-up capital which is
represented by loans outstanding be postponed ecuhie payable on each portion of the principal of
such loans when such portion is repaid to the BankV obligations that are not so deferred are due fo
settlement within 12 months of the date establishEtese obligations inclusive of those portioret dre
past due for settlement and are expected to beddttthe future are derivatives and are fair gdlin
accordance with IAS 39, with any gain or loss bewgprded in the profit for the year in the statetrod
comprehensive income.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner censisith the internal reporting provided to theethi
operating decision maker. The chief operating glexi maker is the person or group that allocates
resources to and assesses the performance of #ratiog segments of an entity. The Bank has
determined that the Senior Management Group (SM@$ ichief operating decision maker.

In accordance with IFRS 8, the Bank has one opgyatgment, its Ordinary Capital Resources (OCR).
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NOTE C — RISK MANAGEMENT

The very nature of the Bank’s activities necessgtdlhe analysis, evaluation, acceptance and maeagem
of some degree of financial risk. OperationallfpECaims to achieve an appropriate balance between
risk and return by adopting an appropriate mix efsures to mitigate the various types of risk teclvh

it is exposed. These measures include the adoptiarvariety of policies, guidelines and practiedgch
together make up the Bank’s risk management framewdese policies and practices are reviewed and
modified periodically to reflect best practice athe institution’s changing circumstances. Frequent
reporting of the Bank’s performance in relationthe established risk framework is strictly adheted
The most important types of risk faced by CDB aseoaiated with the borrowing member countries
(country credit risk), liquidity risk, market risand operational risk. Market risk includes cursenc
interest rate and other price risks.

Different committees in the institution have besesigned the responsibility of monitoring and manggi
the varied types of risk faced by the Bank. Famagle, credit, liquidity and market risk are marthg
the Finance and Corporate Planning Department. Atgit and Post-Evaluation Committee (APEC)
assists the Board of Directors in discharging ésponsibility for risk management. In the exequtid
its role, the APEC assesses the effectivenessnahdial policies and reporting, fiduciary controls,
various aspects of financial, business, and operaisk, quality of earnings and internal controls
addition, the APEC discusses with management amebtternal auditors financial issues and polidies t
have an important bearing on the Bank’s financiaifion and risk-bearing capacity.

The Bank’s Loans Committee, which includes all $baior management of the Bank with the exception
of the President, has principal responsibility éasuring that adequate due diligence has beeredamit

by the staff on all investment and other projeatd ¢hat all the relevant policies relating to lengi
procurement, and other conditionalities are adh&rduefore recommendation is made to the President.
This committee, therefore, plays an important neleanaging operational risk.

The Bank’s Investment Committee comprises, at dmim, the President, the two Vice-Presidents, the
Director of Finance and Corporate Planning andtinector of Economics and provides oversight of the

investment function. It monitors adherence toithe@stment guidelines which have been approved by
the Board of Directors. It also approves shiftsthe Bank’s investment strategy based on internal
liquidity needs and changes in the external ecoooemvironment. The committee also monitors

investment performance in relation to the estabtishenchmarks, counterparty creditworthiness aed th

valuation of derivatives.

Credit Risk

The major risk to CDB as a multilateral developmiggmk is its exposure to country credit risk. Tiing&
relates to potential losses to CDB in the event ahaorrowing member is unable or unwilling to sesv

its obligations to the Bank. CDB manages its cguattedit risk through its financial policies arehtling
strategies, including individual country exposumaitls and overall creditworthiness assessmentsesdh
include ongoing assessments of a country’s macrmeni@ performance as well as its socio-political
conditions and future growth prospects. The irlial country’s exposure to the Bank on outstanding
loans as at December 31, 2011 is reported in Note H

The Bank manages its credit risk on liquid fundd darivative financial instruments by ensuring that
individual investments can have a credit rating libsn A- for commercial bank obligations and A& f
government obligations. In addition, in relatian derivative transactions, all counter parties nmest
rated not less than A2/A at the commencement ofréresactions.
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NOTE C — RISK MANAGEMENT..continued
Credit risk measurement

(&) Loans and advances

CDB'’s capital adequacy methodology is used in m&agits loan portfolio credit risk and is constred
around three components:

)] the ‘probability of default’ by the counterparty as contractual obligations;

(i)  current exposures to the counterparty andikisly future development, from which
the Bank derives the ‘exposure at default’; and

(i) the likely recovery ratio on the defaultedliglations (the ‘loss given default’).

These credit risk measurements, when combinedgctrefi@ected and unexpected (economic) losses on
the portfolio (the ‘expected loss model’) and assdd on the recommendations of the Basel Committee
on Banking Regulations and the Supervisory Prag{ite Basel Committee).

() The Bank’s capital adequacy model assesseprttmbility of default of individual borrowers on
the basis of external ratings. For borrowers withan external rating, judgement and bench-
marking against similar credit are used to assimgrapgpropriate rating. Borrowers are segmented
into four rating classes. The rating scale, shiwlow, reflects the range of default probabilities
defined for each rating class. This means thapyiimciple, exposures migrate between classes as
the assessment of their probability of default ¢jgsn The rating tools are kept under review and
upgraded as necessary.

Internal ratings scale and mapping of externahgatiare as follows:

CDB’s Rating  Description of the grade  External rating: Standard & Poor’s equivalent

1 Investment grade AAA, AA+, AA- A+, A-

2 Standard monitoring BBB+, BBB, BBB-, BB+, BB, BB-, B+, B, B-
3 Special monitoring CCCtoC

4 Sub-standard D

The ratings of the major rating agency shown intti#e above are mapped to the rating classes
based on the long-term average default rates foh external grade. External ratings where
available are used to benchmark the internal cmisktassessment. Observed defaults per rating
category vary year on year, especially over an @zioncycle.

(i) Exposure at default is based on the amounjzeeted to be owed at the time of default.
Whenever the model is run, the loans outstandinghiindividual countries at that point in timear
used as the exposure at default. However, beasfuige Bank’s small exposure to the private
sector, these loans are all placed in a singlepgrou

(i) Loss given default or loss severity represetite Bank’s expectation of the extent of loss on a
claim should default occur. CDB’s experiencehiattthe actual loss incurred at default is the
opportunity cost of the income foregone as a reguitot receiving the debt payment on schedule.
The historical experience is that the Bank evehtuadcovers all of the outstanding amounts,

including the penalty interest charge.
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NOTE C — RISK MANAGEMENT..continued
Credit risk measurement..continued

(b) Debt securities and other bills

CDB'’s Investment Guidelines limit the quality oftinstruments that the Bank can hold in its investm
portfolio. No individual investment can have aditeating less than A-. However, CDB can invest
non-freely convertible currencies in unconditior@dligations issued or guaranteed by indigenous
commercial banks provided that no such bank holoierthan $1,000,000 of the investible amount of the
given currency.

Risk limit control and mitigation measures

The Bank manages limits and controls concentratibreredit risk. The financial policies limit the
amount of exposure in relation to a single borrowad to groups of borrowers. These risks are
monitored on a quarterly basis and subject to nfirguent review, when necessary. Currently the
exposure limit to the single largest borrower is%0of the Bank’s capital and the limit for the thre
largest borrowers is 120% of capital.

Credit related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to renthat funds are available to a borrower as requir
Guarantees and standby letters of credit, whichesgmt irrevocable assurances that the Bank witlema
payment, carry the same credit risk as loans. ubentary and commercial letters of credit, whioh ar
written undertakings by the Bank on behalf of artwer authorising a third party to draw drafts be t
Bank up to a stipulated amount under specific teant conditions, are collateralised by the undedyi
shipments of goods to which they relate and theeefarry less risk than a direct borrowing. ThelBa
currently does not have any such exposures.

CDB loans generally take several years before #eyfully disbursed. As a result, the Bank has
undisbursed balances of approved loans. The liguittk remains with the Bank as it is required to
provide funds to the borrowers when requested. Hdmek is potentially exposed to a loss in relation
the unused commitment. This exposure is reducettheaglisbursement is contingent on the borrower
meeting its obligations in terms of debt servicd ather policy related conditions.

Derivative transactions while providing effectiveoeaomic hedges under the Bank’s risk management
position do not qualify for hedge accounting untther specific rules in IAS 39 and are thereforeteéas
derivatives held for trading, with fair value gaissd losses reported in income.

CDB has a potential risk of loss if a swap courdaespfails to perform its obligations, and in order
reduce such credit risk, CDB only enters into loegn swap transactions with counterparties eligible
under CDB'’s swap guidelines which include the regaent that counterparties have a credit rating of
AA or higher. These guidelines are monitored nmagoing basis and CDB does not anticipate that an
of its counterparties will fail to perform their lidmtions under such agreements.
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NOTE C — RISK MANAGEMENT..continued
Master netting arrangements

The Bank further restricts its exposure to creaskes by entering into master netting arrangenveitits
counterparties with which it undertakes a signiftcaolume of transactions. Master netting arranges

do not generally result in an offset of statemdrfirancial position assets and liabilities as sactions

are usually settled on a gross basis. Howevercthdit risk associated with favourable contragts
reduced by a master netting arrangement to theetttat if an event of default occurs, all amouwith

the counterparty are terminated and settled ort dams. The Bank’s overall exposure to credk da
derivative instruments subject to master nettingqragements can change substantially within a short
period since it is affected by each transactionexitio the arrangement.

Impairment and provisioning policies

The rating system described previously focused roareredit-quality mapping from the inception oéth
lending and investment activities. In contrastpd@inment provisions are recognized for financial
reporting purposes only for losses that have beenried at the reporting date based on objective
evidence of impairment. Due to the different melttlogies applied, the amount of incurred crediséss
provided for in the financial statements are usuallyer than the amount determined from the expected
loss model that is used for internal operationahaggment. The impairment provision in the stateroént
financial position at year-end is derived from assaent of collateral held and anticipated recefipts
that account. The following table provides an wgsial of the internal rating categories of the Bank’
loans and the associated impairment provision matiten:

Bank’s rating

As at December 31 2011 2010
Impairment Impairment
Loans ($) Provision (%) Loans ($)  Provision (%)

Investment grade $37,519 - $57,303 -
Standard monitoring 477,755 - 548,424 -
Special monitoring 486,544 - 379,200 -
Sub-standard 5,719 100 8,621 100
Total $1,007,537 100 $993,548 100

The internal rating tool assists management toraéte whether objective evidence of impairment ®xis
under IAS 39, based on the following criteria:

* Delinquency in contractual payments of principainterest;

» Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borro\ieg. equity ratio, net income percentage of yales
* Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

* Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

» Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive pasit

* Deterioration in the value of collateral;

» Downgrading below investment grade level; and

» Economic condition of the country.
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NOTE C — RISK MANAGEMENT..continued
Bank’s rating ...continued

The Bank’s policy requires the review of individdmancial assets that are above materiality thidsho

at least annually, or more regularly when individciacumstances require. Impairment allowances on
individually assessed accounts are determined bgvatuation of the incurred loss at the reportiated

on a case-by-case basis, and are applied to alidodlly significant accounts. The assessment atym
encompasses collateral held (including re-confiromatf its enforceability) and the anticipated recei

for that individual account. As at December 3112@nd 2010, two loans were assessed as impaired in
the private sector loan portfolio.

Collective assessment for impairment allowancespaogided for: (i) portfolios of homogenous assets
that are individually below materiality thresholdsid (ii) losses that have been incurred but have/et
been identified, by using the available historicapexience, experienced judgement and statistical
techniques. Collective assessment for impairmsenndertaken with the public sector portfolio cdiris.

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, no impairmentasasssed in the public sector loan portfolio.

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral feld or other credit enhancements

Credit risk exposure relating to assets includetherstatement of financial position is as follows:

As at December 31 2011 2010
Cash and cash equivalents $ 79,163 $ 9434
Debt securities at fair value through profit ordos 244,242 103,212
Public sector loans 958,564 942,851
Private sector loans 48,973 50,697
Derivative financial instruments 128,801 96,691
Non-negotiable demand notes 44,363 44,368
Amounts required to meet maintenance of value orenay holdings 1,121 998
Subscriptions in arrears 15,975 1,250
Other assets 14,625 11,048

$1,535,827 $1,260,549
Undisbursed loan balances
Public sector 196,761 219,636
Private sector 34,514 43,452

$1,767,102 $1,523,637

The above table represents a worse case scenatiedif risk exposure as at December 31, 2011 and
2010, without taking account of any collateral hetather credit enhancements attached.

For assets included on the statement of finanaaltipn, the exposures set out above are baseceton n
carrying amounts as reported in the statemennahtial position.

As shown above, 65.4% of the total maximum exposigerived from loans and commitments to the
public sector (2010: 76.3%); 4.7% represents |l@uscommitments to the private sector (2010: 6.2%).
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NOTE C — RISK MANAGEMENT..continued
Loans and advances
Loans are summarized as follows:

December 31, 2011

December 31, 2010

Public Sector

Private Sector Public Sector Private Sector

Neither past due nor impaired $935,605 $43,254 $919,656 $40,028
Past due but not impaired 22,959 - 25,241 2
Impaired 10,765 - 10,667
Gross 958,564 54,019 944,897 50,697
Less: allowance for impairment (5,046) - (2,046)
Net $958,564 $48,973 $944,897 $48,651

During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2040s that were neither past due nor impaired
represented 99% of loans outstanding.

Loans and advances neither past due nor impaired
The credit quality of the loan portfolio that weneither past due nor impaired can be assessed by
reference to the internal rating system adoptethéyBank.

Loans at December 31, 2011

Public Sector Private Sector Total Loans
Investment grade $37,517 $ - $37,517
Standard monitoring 475,879 - 475,879
Special monitoring 442,209 43,254 485,463
Total $955,605 $43,254 $998,859

Loans at December 31, 2010

Public Sector Private Sector Total Loans
Investment grade $51,645 $ i $51,645
Standard monitoring 536,421 - 536,421
Special monitoring 356,825 40,028 396,853
Total $944,891 $40,028 $984,919
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NOTE C — RISK MANAGEMENT..continued

Loans and advances..continued

Loans and advances past due but not impaired

Loans and advances less than 90 days past duetarensidered impaired, unless other information is

available to indicate the contrary. Gross amountmears on loans and advances by class to
customers that were past due but not impaired afellows:

Loans at December 31, 2011

Public Sector Private Sector Total Loans
Past due up to 30 days $2 $- $2
Past due 30 — 60 days - - -
Past due 60 — 90 days 209 - 209
Over 90 days - - -
Total $211 $- $211

Loans at December 31, 2010

Public Sector Private Sector Total Loans
Past due up to 30 days $2 $1 $3
Past due 30 — 60 days - - -
Past due 60 — 90 days 4 - 4
Over 90 days - 1 1
Total $6 $2 $8

Non-negotiable demand notes
At December 31, 2011, no non-negotiable demandsrarte considered to be impaired.

Collateral

CDB does not take collateral on its public sectanis. For private sector loans, CDB will requise
commitments to be secured. The nature and extettteo$ecurity will be determined on a case-by-case
basis. The Loans (CDB) Acts or other applicableaslatjon are enacted in the various BMC's and
authorize the governments to raise loans from GiRByrantee loans by CDB to statutory authorities and
provide for repayment of any loan made by CDB ® &overnment of any statutory corporation, to be
charged upon and paid out of the consolidated fu@dDB also derives comfort from the negative pkedg
condition included in its loan agreements. Thievjgion prohibits, except with CDB’s consent, the
charging of Government assets to secure exterdabiedness unless CDB is equally and materially
secured. Furthermore, CDB would be accorded pegfecreditor status by its BMCs being members of
the Bank.
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NOTE C — RISK MANAGEMENT..continued
Debt securities, treasury bills and other eligibleills

For lines of credit to private sector financial emhediaries, a guarantee from a parent or a trust
arrangement under which the sub-loans financedhbylibe are pooled and assigned in the event of
default. As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, r&i &rrangements existed in the private sector q@lartf
The fair value of the pool is the future expectadicflows of the sub-loans discounted by theirese
rate. Marketable assets secure direct loanset@tivate sector, while the fair value is the otiable
market price of the asset. The fair value of théateral on the impaired private sector loans was
estimated at $63,800.

The main investment management objective is to taminsecurity and liquidity. Subject to these
parameters, CDB seeks the highest possible retuits mvestments. CDB is restricted by its Invessht
Policy to invest in government and government-szlatdebt instruments and in time deposits.
Investments may be made in corporate bonds ratem Better, AAA rated asset-backed securities, and
AAA-rated mortgage-backed securitieAdherence to the investment policy guidelines isitased on a
monthly basis by the Investment Committee.

The tables below present an analysis of debt dexsjrireasury bills and other eligible bills bytimg
agency designation at December 31, 2011 and 204€edbon Standard & Poor’'s ratings or their
equivalent:

2011
Ratings
AA-to
Type AAA AA+ A+to A- Unrated Total
Obligations guaranteed by Governménts  $69,868 $74,888 $ - $3,171 $147,927
Euro Commercial Bond 9,972 - 1,405 - 11,377
Time Deposits - 325 - 1,565 1,890
Sovereign Bond 1,417 27,402 6,263 - 35,082
Supranational Bond 47,966 - - - 47,966
Total $129,223 $102,615 $7,668 $4,736 $244,242

! Freely convertible currencies in Government angdeéBoment-guaranteed obligations which are memtfeteedG7 or EU and its agencies.
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NOTE C — RISK MANAGEMENT..continued

Debt securities, treasury bills and other eligibléills...continued

2010
Ratings
AA-to
Type AAA AA+  A+to A- Unrated Total
Obligations guaranteed by Governménts  $72,543 $ - $ - $3,174 $75,717
Euro Commercial Bond 2,094 309 - - 2,403
Time Deposits - 315 - 1,523 1,838
Sovereign Bond 3,793 - 8,428 - 12,221
Supranational Bond 11,033 - - - 11,033
Total $89,463 $624 $8,428 $4,697 $103,212

Concentration of risks of financial assets with crdit risk exposure

The following table breaks down CDB’s main credipesure at their carrying amounts, as categorized
by Borrowing Member Countries and non-regional merspUSA, and other countries. For this table,
the exposures are allocated to regions based ocotihery of domicile of the counterparties. A het
analysis of the Bank’s exposure on loans by gedgcapregion is provided at Note G.

2011
Non-
Borrowing Regional
Members Members USA Other Total
Cash and cash equivalents $8,723 $1,838 $68,602 $ - $79,163
Debt securities at fair value through
profit or loss 2,970 35,5685 102,093 103,594 244,242
Public sector loans 958,564 - - - 958,564
Private sector loans 48,973 - - - 48,973
Derivative financial instruments 36 1,085 130,305 - 131,426
Non-negotiable demand notes 35,953 8,410 - - 44,363
Subscriptions in arrears 14,725 1,250 - - 15,975
Receivables — other 14,625 - - - 14,625
Total, December 31 $1,084,569 $48,168 $301,000 103,594 $1,537,331

! Freely convertible currencies in Government angdeBoment-guaranteed obligations which are memtfetteedG7 or EC and its agencies.
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NOTE C — RISK MANAGEMENT ...continued

Concentration of risks of financial assets with crdit risk exposure...continued

2010
Non-
Borrowing  Regional
Members Members USA Other Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2662 $4855 $1917 $ - $ 9,434
Debt securities at fair value through
profit or loss 3,086 31,949 31,815 36,362 103,212
Public sector loans 942,851 - - - 942,851
Private sector loans 50,697 - - - 50,697
Derivative financial instruments 266 732 96,691 - 97,689
Non-negotiable demand notes 35,934 8,434 - - 44,368
Subscriptions in arrears - 1,250 - - 1,250
Receivables — other 11,048 - - - 11,048
Total, December 31 $1,046,544 $47,227 $130,423 $36,362 $1,260,549

CDB’s membership is classified into regional andi-negional members. The regional members are all
members of CARICOM and are further sub-divided imborowing and non-borrowing members.

Non-regional members are shareholders from outefdéhe Caribbean region e.g. Canada, United
Kingdom, Germany, Italy and China.

Market risk

CDB takes on exposure to market risks, which isrible that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changemarket prices. Market risks arise from open
positions in interest rate, currency and equitydpats, all of which are exposed to general andifipec
market movements and changes in the level of Vibyatif market rates or prices such as interestgat
credit spreads, and foreign exchange rates.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that theurfe cash flows of a financial instrument will fludeia
because of changes in market interest rates. v&hie interest rate risk is the risk that the vabfiex
financial instrument will fluctuate because of change market interest rates. The Bank takes on
exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the pitengalevels of market interest rates on both #g f/alue
and cash flow risks.

Foreign exchange risk

CDB takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuatiarthe prevailing foreign currency exchange rates

its financial position and cash flows. All loansthg Bank are made either from currencies available
from members’ subscriptions or from currencies wed and the principal amounts are repayable to the
Bank in the currencies lent. The Bank managesangd risk on borrowings by entering into forward
contracts. The following table summarises the syp®to foreign currency exchange rate risk. khetl

in the table are the financial instruments at cagyamounts, categorized by currency. As at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, all loans were denadedina United States dollars.
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NOTE C — RISK MANAGEMENT..continued

Concentrations of currency risk

As at December 31

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Loans

Derivative financial instruments
Receivable from members
Receivables — other

Total financial assets
Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments

Accounts payable
Borrowings

Total financial liabilities
Net on-balance sheet financial position

Credit commitments

As at December 31

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Loans

Derivative financial instruments
Receivable from members
Receivables — other

Total financial assets
Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments

Accounts payable
Borrowings

Total financial liabilities
Net on-balance sheet financial position

Credit commitments

2011
US$ Yen Other Total
$68,602 10,561 $79,163
224,622 - 19,620 244,242
1,007,537 - - 1,007,537
128,801 - - 128,80
43,058 - 17,280 60,338
9,206 - 5,419 14,625
1,481,826 - 52,880 1,534,706
193 - - 193
8,813 - - 8,813
612,701 245,174 - 857,875
621,707 245,174 - 866,881
860,119 5(244) 52,880 667,825
231,275 -
2010
US$ Yen Other Total
$2,133 7,301 $9,434
82,227 - 20,985 103,212
993,548 - - 993,548
97,689 - - 97,689
28,949 - 16,669 45,618
9,211 - 1,837 11,048
1,213,757 - 46,792 1,260,549
297 - - 297
8,110 - - 8,110
419,829 233,411 - 653,240
428,236 233,411 - 66476
785,521 3(#B1) 46,792 598,902
263,088 -

The Bank has entered into currency swap agreentmntehich proceeds of two borrowings were
converted into US dollars in order to hedge agangbing operational currency risks.

If the Japanese Yen exchange rate had been 10%rhigbB’s comprehensive income for the year
ended December 31, 2011, would increase by $20,436e Japanese Yen exchange rate had been 10%
lower, CDB’s comprehensive income would decreas$29,094 for the year ended December 31, 2011.

-28-



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

NOTE C — RISK MANAGEMENT..continued

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility ttlaanges in interest rate will affect future cdskvé on the
fair value of financial instruments.

The table below summaries the exposure to inteagstrisks including financial instruments at cargyi
amounts, categorized by the earlier of contragelicing or maturity dates.

At December 31

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Debt securities at fair value
Loans

Derivative financial instruments
Receivable from members
Other receivables

Total Assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable

Payable to members
Borrowings

Total Liabilities

Total interest sensitivity gap

At December 31

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Debt securities at fair value
Loans

Derivative financial instruments
Receivable from members
Other receivables

Total Assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable

Payable to members
Borrowings

Total Liabilities

Total interest sensitivity gap

2011
Non-
0-3 3-12 Over 5 interest
months months  1-5 years years bearing Total
$79,163 $ - $- $ - $ - $ 79,163
19,360 43,217 133,093 48,572 - 244,242
1,007,537 - - - - 1,007,537
128,801 - - - - 81201
- - - - 60,338 60,338
- - - - 14,625 14,625
$1,234,861 $43,217  $133,093 $48,572 $74,963 $1/684,
$ $ $ $ $2,966 $2,966
193 193
25,178 208,557 350,720 273,420 - 857,875
$25,178 $208,557  $350,720 $273,420 $3,159 $861,034
1,209,683  (165,340) (217,627) (224,848)
2010
$9,434 $ - $- $ - $ - $ 9,434
14,588 31,562 50,805 6,257 - 103,212
993,548 - - - - 993,548
97,689 - - - - 669
- - - - 45,618 45,618
- - - - 11,048 11,048
$1,115,259 $31,562 $50,805 $6,257 $56,666 $1,260,54
$ $ $ $ $1,903 $1,903
297 297
298,436 46,393 75,000 233,411 - 653,240
$298,436 $46,393 $75,000 $233,411 $2,200 $655,440
819,096 (14,831)  (24,195) (227,154)
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NOTE C — RISK MANAGEMENT..continued

Interest rate risk...continued

If interest rates had been 50 bps higher or lowdral other variables were held constant, the GD&t
income for the year ended December 31, 2011, wiondcbase or decrease by $2,608. In 2010, an
increase of 50 bps would have resulted in an isered $3,000 while a decrease of 50 bps would have
resulted in a decrease of $1,584.

The sensitivity analyses are based on the exposunterest rates for both derivatives and nonvdenre
instruments at the reporting date. For floatinte rigabilities, the analysis is prepared assumimg t
amount of liability outstanding at the reportingtedlavas outstanding for the whole year. A 50 bps
increase or decrease is used and represents maaigeassessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk relates to the probability that tBank is unable to meet the payment obligationscsteu
with its financial liabilities when they fall dueh& consequence may be the failure to meet obligsto
disburse on its commitments.

Liquidity risk management process
CDB'’s liquidity management process includes:

+ Day-to-day disbursements, managed by monitoringréutash flows to ensure that requirements
can be met. This includes replenishment of fuaslsshey mature or borrowed by its BMCs.
CDB maintains an active presence in internatiomathey markets to enable this to happen;

+ Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assétsit can easily be liquidated as protection
against any unforeseen interruption to cash flowl; a

« Managing the concentration and profile of debt nitigr
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NOTE C — RISK MANAGEMENT..continued
Liquidity risk ...continued
Non-derivative cash flows

The table below presents the cash flows by remaicimgractual maturities at the reporting date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contraan@iscounted cash flows.

2011

0-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5
At December 31 months  months years years Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $79,163 $ - $ - $ - $79,163
Debt securities at fair value 30,212 45,587 136,180 67,372 279,351
Loans 42,839 85,021 434,798 718,990 1,281,648
Receivable from members - - - 60,338 60,338
Other receivables 8,501 4,912 1,007 205 14,625
Total Assets $160,715 $135,520 $571,985 $846,905 $1,715,125
Liabilities
Accounts payable $2,096 $14 $62 $794 $2,966
Payable to members - - - 297 297
Borrowings 4,055 237,083 396,291 344,255 981,684
Total Liabilities $6,151 $237,097 $396,353 $345,346 $984,947

2010

0-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5
At December 31 months  months years years Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $9,434 $ - $ - $ - $9,434
Debt securities at fair value 12,056 29,187 40,927 7,023 89,193
Loans 41,716 86,577 428,614 726,455 1,283,362
Receivable from members - - - 45,618 45,618
Other receivables 9,784 545 500 219 11,048
Total Assets $72,990 $116,309 $470,041 $779,315 $1,438,655
Liabilities
Accounts payable $1,781 $ 51 $ 43 $ 28 $ 1,903
Borrowings 4,608 21,236 409,817 349,835 785,496
Total Liabilities $6,389  $21,287 $409,860 $349,863 $787,399

Assets held for managing liquidity risk

The Bank holds a diversified portfolio of cash amigh-quality highly-liquid securities to support
payment obligations and contingent funding in ahhjigstressed market environment. The Bank’s assets
held for managing liquidity risk comprise:

Cash and balances with commercial banks;

Time deposits;

Government bonds and other securities that aréyeesied;

Secondary sources of liquidity including linescoédit with commercial banks.
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NOTE C — RISK MANAGEMENT..continued

Liquidity risk ...continued

Derivative cash flows

The following table shows the derivative finandiastruments that will be settled on a net basis int

relevant maturity groupings based on the remaipemipd at the balance sheet to the contractualmatu
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are aco@l undiscounted cash flows.

2011
Over 5

At December 31 0 -3 months  3-12 months 1-5 years years Total
Derivatives:
- Currency swaps $3,382 $337 $10,677 $3,825 $18,221
- Maintenance of value - 1,121 - 193 1,314
Total $3,382 $1,458 $10,677 $4,018 $19,535

2010
At December 31
Derivatives:
- Currency swaps $3,392 $415 $3,824 $(25,195) $(17,564)
- Maintenance of value - 998 - (297) 701
Total $3,392 $1,413 $3,824 $(25,492) $(16,863)

Commitments, guarantees and contingent liabilities

Loan and capital commitments

The table below summarizes the amounts of the Backmmitments, guarantees and contingent
liabilities that will commit it to extend credit its BMCs.

2011
0-12 1-5

At December 31 months years Total
Loan commitments 156,000 75,275 231,275
Capital commitments 839 241 1,080
Total 156,839 75,516 232,355

2010
At December 31
Loan commitments $259,000 $4,088 $263,088
Capital commitments 2,040 330 2,370
Total $261,040 $4,418 $265,458
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NOTE C — RISK MANAGEMENT..continued
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
(@) Fair value hierarchy

IFRS 7 specifies a hierarchy of valuation technigbased on whether the inputs to those valuation
techniques are observable or unobservable. Obdeniaputs reflect market data obtained from
independent sources; unobservable inputs reflextBdnk’s market assumptions. These two types of
inputs have created the following fair value hiehgr

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for idmhtassets. This level includes listed equity sées
and debt instruments on exchanges (for examplé\¢we York Stock Exchange, NASDAQ).

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices includedievel 1 that are observable for the asset either
directly or indirectly. This level includes deriing contracts. The source of input parameters thile
LIBOR yield curve or counterparty credit risk isotBmberg.

Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that arot based on observable market date (unobservable
inputs). This level includes equity investments atebt instruments with significant unobservable
components.

This hierarchy requires the use of observable mat&ta when available. The Bank considers relevant
and observable market prices in its valuations e/ipessible.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

2011
December 31 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo
- Debt securities $ - $244,242 $ - $244,242
Financial assets designated at fair value
- Derivatives - 130,305 - 130,305
- Maintenance of value - 1,121 - 1,121
Total assets $ - $375,668 $ - $375,668
Financial liabilities designated at fair value
- Maintenance of value $ - $ 193 3 - $193

-33-



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

NOTE C — RISK MANAGEMENT..continued

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities..continued

2010
December 31 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo
- Debt securities $ - $103,212 $ - $103,212
Financial assets designated at fair value
- Derivatives - 98,964 - 98,964
- Maintenance of value - 998 - 998
Total assets $ - $203,174 $ - $203,174
Financial liabilities designated at fair value
- Maintenance of value $ - $ 297 % - $297

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair valuengsa valuation technique

The total amount of the change in fair value ed@taising a valuation technique that was recogriized
profit and loss during the year was income of $3@,2010 - $41,094).

(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The carrying amounts and the fair value of thosarfcial assets and liabilities not presented in the
statement of financial position at their fair vahre summarized below.

()  Due from banks
Due from banks includes cash and inter-bank plan&sndhe estimated fair value of
floating rate placements and overnight depositisés carrying value.

(i)  Loans

The Bank's loan portfolio comprises loans grantedadr guaranteed by its Borrowing

Member Countries as well as certain other non-&gerguaranteed loans. Amounts
disbursed on loans are repayable in the currencuwencies disbursed by the Bank or
in other freely convertible currency or currenceggproved by the Bank. The amount
repayable in each of these currencies shall belaquthe amount disbursed in the

original currency. Loans are granted for a maxinperiod of twenty years, including a

grace period, which is typically the period of @ajimplementation. Loans are for the
purpose of financing development projects and nognes, and are not intended for
sale. Further, management does not believe teaaecomparable secondary market for
the type of loans made by the Bank.

For 2011 and 2010 the estimated fair values aredbas discounted cash flow models
using an estimated yield curve appropriate forémeaining term to maturity.
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NOTE C — RISK MANAGEMENT..continued
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities..continued

(i)  Non-negotiable demand notes
These are non-interest bearing demand notes wittonditions for repayment. The fair
value is estimated therefore to be the carryingeal

(iv) Receivables - other
Due to the short-term nature of these assets,viine is assumed to approximate
carrying value.

(v)  Accounts payable
The estimated fair value of current liabilities lwiho stated maturity is the amount
repayable on demand.

(vi) Borrowings
The aggregate fair values are based on discouattdftow models using a current yield
curve appropriate for the remaining term to magurit

The following table summarizes the carrying amouand fair values of financial assets and liab#itie
presented on the Bank’s statement of financialtjposi

Carrying value Fair value

2011 2010 2011 2010
Financial assets
Due from banks $22,187 $4,116 $22,187 $4,116
Loans 1,007,537 993,548 678,542 784,988
Non-negotiable demand notes 44,363 44,368 44,363 44,368
Subscriptions in arrears 15,975 1,250 15,975 1,250
Receivables — other 14,625 11,048 14,625 11,103
Financial liabilities
Accounts payable 274 361 274 361
Borrowings 837,875 653,240 XXX 692,036

Derivatives

The Bank uses derivatives in its borrowing andiligbgmanagement activities to take advantage aftco
saving opportunities and to lower its funding costsie Bank has entered into currency swap agretsmen
with major international banks by which proceeds dforrowing are converted into a different curgenc
and simultaneously a forward exchange agreemeswasuted providing for the future exchange of the
two currencies in order to recover the currencyvedied. The Bank has also entered into interdst ra
swaps, which transform a floating rate paymentgatiion in a particular currency into a fixed rate
payment obligation ovice-versa Other financial expenses relate to expensegatkirom the net swap
expenses.

The determination of the fair value of financiastiuments is disclosed in note B “Financial assdfd)
Determination of fair value”.
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NOTE C — RISK MANAGEMENT..continued
Capital Management

CDB'’s objectives when managing capital, which lr@ader concept than “equity” on the face of batanc
sheets, are to:

» Safeguard the Bank’s ability to continue as angaoncern; and
» Maintain a strong capital base to support itsatigyment activities.

The Bank’s capital adequacy framework which is &ziegt with the guidelines developed by the Basel
Committee takes into account the Bank’s total gguihich is defined as paid-up capital, retained
earnings and reserves less receivable from meminedsthe cumulative effect of IAS 39. The goals of
the Bank’s capital adequacy policy are to:

(i) ensure a reliable framework and methodology tordete the appropriate levels of economic
capital that the Bank should carry for prudentiagmses; and

(i) determine from time to time the appropriate clesrnig the level of economic capital that the
Bank must have, based on changes in the risk erofiits credit exposures.

The capital adequacy framework is supported bynaarme targeting policy that would enable the Bank,
not only to safeguard, but also to strengtheneit®ll of capitalisation. CDB’s Board of Directorash
approved a total equity to exposure (loans andagiees) ratio (TEER)n the range of 50 and 55%.

At the end of each reporting period, an assessisenade to determine the imbedded risk in the Bank’
exposures to the public and private sectors anchipacity to carry this risk. The outstandingn®éor
each debtor are placed into the rating categorthatf debtor. The default rate that is associateld
each rating is applied to the outstanding exposyreach obligee.

The results of this analysis based on the stateofdirtancial position as at December 31, 201 1licai
a TEER of 54.7% (2010: 52.4%). This indicates tha Bank is adequately capitalised as its TEER is
within its policy range of 50% to 55%.

Management provides quarterly and annual reportbdoBoard to ensure compliance with the capital
adequacy and exposure policies.

NOTE D — CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMEIRS

The Bank’s financial statements and its financiebults are influenced by accounting policies,
assumptions, estimates and management judgemeict) micessarily have to be made in the course of
preparation of the financial statements.

CDB makes estimates and assumptions that affecepmted amounts of assets and liabilities within
next financial year. All estimates and assumpti@esiired in conformity with IFRS are best estimates
undertaken in accordance with the applicable stahdaEstimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and based on historical experience dmat factors, including expectations of future egent
that are believed to be reasonable under the cstanues.

! For the purposes of capital adequacy, Equity id-Pacapital + Ordinary reserves + Net income -€@&al reserve — Net receivable from
members. Exposure = loans and guarantees outstandin
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NOTE D — CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMETS...continued

Accounting policies and management’s judgementéotain items are especially critical for the Bank’
results and financial situation due to their maieét.

Loan loss provisions

The Bank reviews its loan portfolios on an annwadi® to assess impairment. In determining whether
impairment loss should be recorded in the incoratestent, the Bank makes judgements as to whether
there is any observable data indicating that ther®@ measurable decrease in the estimated futste ca
flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease be identified with an individual loan in that
portfolio. This evidence may include observabltadadicating that there has been an adverse chiange
the payment status of borrowers in a group, ormnatior local economic conditions that correlatéhwi
defaults on assets in the Bank. For public sdotns the assessment is done on a portfolio bakite

for the private sector loans, the assessment ie donthe individual loans. The Bank’'s method for
determining the level of impairment of loans isaésed in Note B ‘Impairment of financial assetsda
further explained in Note C under credit risk.

Portfolio provisions for the unidentified impairmensf sovereign loans at December 31, 2010 and 2009,
amounted to $Nil. Due to the Bank’s preferred itoedstatus afforded by its members a downgrade or
upgrade by one risk-rating category would not hiaad a significant impact on the level of sovereign
portfolio provision.

Fair value of derivatives

The fair values of financial instruments that aot quoted in active markets are determined by using
valuation techniques, for example, models. Albeis are calibrated to ensure that outputs redleital
data and comparative market prices. To the extedtical, models use only observable data; howeve
areas such as credit risks (both own and countgjpaolatilities and correlations require managaetrte
make estimates. Changes in assumptions abowt thetors could affect reported fair value finahcia
instruments. For example, if there was a decrefS6 bps in credit spread, the Bank’s profit foe t/ear
would increase by $0.62 mn and if there was areas® of 50 bps in credit spread, the Bank’s pfofit
the year would decrease by $7.33 mn.

Post employment benefit obligations

The present value of the retirement benefit oblogest depends on a number of factors that are detedn
on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptimg changes in these assumptions will impact the
carrying amount of pension and other post-employrabligations.

The assumptions used in determining the net coebifie) for pensions include the discount rate. The
Bank determines the appropriate discount rateeaetid of each year. This is the interest rateshatild

be used to determine the present value of estinfatece cash flows expected to be required toesdtid
pension obligations. The Bank considers the interases of high-quality instruments that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefiil e paid and that have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related pensiorilitgb

-37-



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

NOTE D — CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMETRS...continued

Post employment benefit obligations.continued
Other key assumptions for pension obligations ase=t on current market conditions.
NOTE E — SEGMENT ANALYSIS

The Bank is a multilateral financial institution dieated to the development of the economies of the
Caribbean member countries. In management’s apithie Bank has one reportable segment since CDB
does not manage its operations by allocating ressusased on a determination of the contributiaihef
net income from individual borrowers.

The following table presents CDB'’s loans outstagdbmlances and associated interest income by
countries which generated in excess of 10% in loderest income as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010:

Interest income Loans outstanding
Country 2011 2010 2011 2010
Jamaica $9,401  $9,848 $243,281 $223,925
Barbados 5,158 5,133 126,478 127,532
St. Vincent and the Grenadines 4,139 4,629 105,471 102,007
Other 21,884 23,052 532,552 540,084
Total $40,582 $42,662 $1,007,752 $993,548

NOTE F — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cashcash equivalents comprise the following balances
with less than 3 months maturity from the dateasfugsition:

2011 2010
Due from banks $22,187 $4,116
Time deposits 56,976 5,318
Cash and cash equivalents $79,163 $9,434
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NOTE G —DEBT SECURITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIOR LOSS

A summary of the Bank’s debt securities at faiueathrough profit or loss was as follows:

December 31

Obligations guaranteed by Governménts
Multilateral organizations

Time Deposits

Euro Commercial Paper

Sub-total
Accrued interest

Total

December 31

Obligations guaranteed by Governments
Multilateral organizations

Time Deposits

Euro Commercial Paper

Sub-total
Accrued interest

Total

2011
UsD EUR CAD All Currencies
$175,218 $4,052 $2,619 $1,405 $183,294
38,353 2,769 6,649 - 41,
- - - 1,886
9,972 - - - 9,972
$223,543 $6,821 $9,268 $3,291 $242,923
1,079 186 49 5 1,319
$224,622 $7,007 $9,317 $3,296 $244,242
2010
usbD EUR CAD All Currencies
$72,969 $7,62 $4,839 $86,999
6,101 - 4,862 - 10,963
. R - 1,834
2,403 - - - 2,403
$81,473 $7,627 $9,701 $3,398 $102,199
754 177 81 1 1,013
$82,227 $7,804 $9,782 $3,399 $103,212

! Freely convertible currencies in Government angdeéBoment-guaranteed obligations which are memtfeteedG7 or EU and its agencies.
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NOTE H — LOANS OUTSTANDING

The following tables break down the Bank's maindireexposures at their carrying amounts, as
categorized by Borrowing Member Countries, regioimgtitutions and to the private sector as of

December 31, 2010.

Borrowers

Anguilla

Antigua and Barbuda
Bahamas

Barbados

Belize

British Virgin Islands
Cayman Islands
Dominica

Grenada

Guyana

Jamaica

Montserrat

St. Kitts and Nevis

St. Lucia

St. Vincent & the Grenadines
Trinidad and Tobago
Turks & Caicos Islands
Regional

Private Sector

Sub-total
Provision for losses

Accrued interest

Total — December 31

Current
Non-current

! Relates to amounts disbursed and outstanding.

2011
Loans not
Loans yet Signed % of Loans
approved effective agreements  Undisbursed Outstandingoutstanding
$75,707 - $75,707 $815 $65,558 6.5
69,483 - 69,483 12,170 40,513 .0 4
58,893 - 58,893 10,058 3,787 0.4
339,232 71,250 267,982 31,556 125,510 125
164,369 - 164,369 37,465 73,238 7.3
59,944 15,672 44,272 4,434 5,1B3 1.5
45,285 - 45,285 - 5,012 0.5
46,014 2,087 43,927 4,759 19,699 2.0
58,328 2,032 56,296 7,142 30,071 3.0
57,650 - 57,650 5,945 29,072 2.9
451,175 - 451,175 37,617 240,898 24.0
485 - 485 - - -
99,849 - 99,849 15,973 58,018 5.8
177,210 4,000 173,210 18,353 92,569 9.2
141,459 3,072 138,387 7,719 104,505 104
129,722 - 129,722 - 32,168 3.2
11,997 - 11,997 1,786 6,292 0.6
14,462 - 14,462 969 7,416 0.7
160,955 - 160,955 34,514 52,440 5.2
2,162,219 98,113 2,064,106 231,275 19091, 100
- - - - (5,046)
- - - - 10,624
$2,162,219 $98,113 $2,064,106 $231,275 $1,007,537
2011
$91,211
$916,541
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NOTE H — LOANS OUTSTANDING. continued

2010
Loans not

Loans yet Signed % of Loans
Borrowers approved effective agreements Undisbursed Outstandingoutstanding
Anguilla $93,711 $18,000 $75,711 $815 $66,771 6.8
Antigua and Barbuda 69,581 - 69,581 23,762 31,404 2 3
Bahamas 58,805 10,109 48,696 - 6,191 0.6
Barbados 304,144 37,062 267,082 41,936 126,306 12.8
Belize 164,447 31,538 132,909 11,328 73,217 7.4
British Virgin Islands 44,307 - 44,307 4,700 17,062 1.7
Cayman lIslands 44,828 - 44,828 - 6,433 0.7
Dominica 43,927 2,176 41,751 8,120 16,048 1.6
Grenada 56,390 1,000 55,390 8,065 30,819 3.1
Guyana 59,468 5,831 53,637 3,398 29,360 3.0
Jamaica 451,977 - 451,977 75,785 216,293 22.0
Montserrat 485 - 485 - - -
St. Kitts and Nevis 99,851 7,017 92,834 12,002 2909, 6.0
St. Lucia 165,896 - 165,896 11,208 100,838 10.2
St. Vincent & the Grenadines 138,540 - 138,540 68,5 107,968 11.0
Trinidad and Tobago 129,754 - 129,754 - 38,450 3.9
Turks & Caicos Islands 12,055 - 12,055 1,856 6,808 0.7
Regional 14,512 - 14,512 7,093 1,359 0.1
Private Sector 160,761 - 160,761 43,452 49,783 5.1
Sub-total 2,113,439 112,733 2,000,706 263,088 ol .4 100
Provision for losses - - - - (2,046)
Accrued interest - - - - 11,194
Total — December 31 $2,113,439 $112,733 $2,000,706 $263,088 $993,548

2010

Current $89,662
Non-current $903,886

! Relates to amounts disbursed and outstanding.
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NOTE H — LOANS OUTSTANDING.. continued

An analysis of the composition of outstanding loaas as follows:

2011
Loans out- Provision  Loans out-
standing  Net Interest for standing % of loans
Currencies receivable 2010 Earned  Disbursements Sub-Total Repayments Losses 2011 outstanding
United States dollars 984,400 - $94,867 $1,079,267 $(77,308) - $1,001,959 100.0
Sub-total 984,400 - 94,867 1,079,267 (77,308) - 01,959 100.0
Provision for losses (2,046) - - (2,046) - (3,000) (5,046)
Accrued interest 11,194 (570) - 10,624 - - 10,624
Total — December 31 $993,548 (570) $94,867 $1,087,845 (77,308) (3,0081,007,537
2010
Loans out- Loans out-
standing Net Interest Provision standing % of loans
Currencies receivable 2009 Earned  Disbursements Sub-Total Repaymentdor Losses 2010 outstanding
United States dollars 808,839 - $246,358 $1,055,197 $(70,797) - $984,400 100.0
Sub-total 808,839 - 246,358 1,055,197 (70,797) - 4,480 100.0
Provision for losses (2,046) - - (2,046) - - (2,046)
Accrued interest 11,537 (343) - 11,194 - - 11,194
Total — December 31 $818,330 (343) $246,358 $1,064,345 (70,797) - Rt
Reconciliation of allowance account for lossesaank
2011 2010
Balance at January 1 $2,046 $2,046
Increase in impairment allowance 3,000 -
Balance at December 31 $5,046  $2,046
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NOTE | — DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of derivative financial instrumeht&dd at December 31, 2011 and 2010, were as fellow

2011 2010
Fair values
Notional
Amount Assets Assets
Cross currency interest rate swaps $160,000 $127,680 $96,691
Maintenance of value $1,121 $998
Liabilities Liabilities
Maintenance of value $193 $297

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitmerggdbange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps
result in an economic exchange of currencies @rast rates or a combination of all these (e.gsszro
currency interest rate swaps). The bank’s craslit represents the potential cost to replace thepsw
contracts if the counterparties fail to fulfill ihebligation.

The Bank has two dual currency interest rate swlpsse swaps were derived by changing underlying
fixed rate borrowings in Japanese Yen to floatag borrowings in United States dollars. The tixed
rate Japanese Yen notes which mature in 2022 a8@d 2&rry an interest rate of 2.75% and 4.35%
respectively. The principal amounts due on mataie in Japanese Yen, while the interest paynaeets
paid in United States dollars.

NOTE J — NON-NEGOTIABLE DEMAND NOTES

The Agreement permits the Bank to accept from a Ioeemon-negotiable, non-interest-bearing demand
notes in place of part of the member's subscriptiothe paid-up capital which shall be payableha t
member's currency and maintenance of value in ceggesuch part, provided that such currency is not
required for the conduct of the operations of ttlB A member that has issued such demand notes
may, at the request of the Bank, convert any ahthrgo interest-bearing notes or into cash to lvested

in government securities of that member. For ailiet listing refer to Note R.

All of the non-negotiable demand notes are nonecrr
NOTE K — MAINTENANCE OF VALUE ON CURRENCY HOLDINGS
Member countries, whose currencies do not havaedl fielationship with the US dollar but have made

adjustments to the exchange rate, are obliged totana the value of their currencies in respecatagbital
contributions if such currencies depreciate.
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NOTE L — RECEIVABLES - OTHER

Inter-fund receivables Note V
Staff loans and other receivables
VAT receivable

Other

Current
Non-current

2011 2010
$8,240 $9,476
852 1,026
552 318
4,981 228
$14,625 $11,048
$13,413 $10,027
$1,212 $1,021

During the year, no provision (2009 — nil) was rieegl as no receivables were considered to be igair

NOTE M — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Under the Headquarters’ Agreement with the hostntrgu the Bank’'s owned buildings in the host

country are intended to be used for the purpos#seoBank.

The carrying values of property and equipment vesréollows:

2011
Land,
Buildings
and Furniture
Projects in  Ancillary and Motor
Progress Works Computers Equipment  Vehicles Total
At January 1
Cost 926 11,112 7,171 3,939 203 23,351
Accumulated depreciation - (6,197) (5,502) (3,196) (151) (15,046)
Closing net book amount 926 4,915 1,669 743 52 38,30
Year ended December 31
Opening net book amount 926 4,915 1,669 743 52 538,30
Additions 713 - 140 592 122 1,567
Disposals — Cost (32) (40) (72)
Disposals-accumulated depreciation - - 31 40 - 71
Depreciation expense - (270) (832) (302) (49) (1,453)
Closing net book amount 1,639 4,645 977 1,033 125 4198
At December 31
Cost 1,639 11,112 7,280 4,491 325 24,847
Accumulated Depreciation - (6,467) (6,303) (3,458) (200) (16,428)
Closing net book amount 1,639 4,645 977 1,033 125 4189
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NOTE M — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENCT.continued

2010
Land,
Buildings
and Furniture
Projectsin  Ancillary and Motor
Progress Works Computers Equipment  Vehicles Total
At January 1
Cost 242 11,083 7,212 3,587 163 22,287
Accumulated Depreciation - (5,925) (4,904) (2,908) (117) (13,854)
Closing net book amount 242 5,158 2,308 679 46 3,43
Year ended December 31
Opening net book amount
Additions 242 5,158 2,308 679 46 8,433
Reclassifications — cost 684 29 197 369 40 1,319
Reclassifications — accumulated depreciation
Disposals - - (238) a7) - (255)
Disposals-accumulated depreciation - - 238 17 - 255
Depreciation expense - (272) (836) (305) (34) (1,447)
Closing net book amount 926 4,915 1,669 743 52 38,30
At December 31
Cost 926 11,112 7,171 3,939 203 23,351
Accumulated Depreciation - (6,197) (5,502) (3,196) (151) (15,046)
Closing net book amount 926 4915 1,669 743 52 8,305
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NOTE N — ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

2011 2010
Accounts payable $847 $83
Accrued expenses 2,119 1,820
Payments in advance - -
Total $2,966 $1,903
Current portion $2,110 $1,832
Non-current portion $856 $71

NOTE O —~MAINTENANCE OF VALUE OF VALUE ON CURRENCY BLDINGS

The Bank is obliged to make MOV payments in proongsotes to members whose currencies have
significantly appreciated.

NOTE P — POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Bank operates a defined benefit pension planaahybrid pension scheme based on the employee
pensionable remuneration and length of service.ildMertain administration charges are allocatked, t
post-employment benefit obligations reflected drese of the OCR as the OCR has no recourse to the
Other Special Funds with respect to this obligation

Pension and other post employment obligations

2011 2010
Balance sheet obligations for:
Pension benefits $(239)
Post-employment medical benefits 2,071
Liability in the balance sheet $1,832
Income statement charge for:
Pensions benefits $3,003
Post-employment medical benefits 244
$3,247
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NOTE P — POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONScontinued

Pension and other post employment obligations continued
The amounts recognized in the statement of finhpoisition are determined as follows:

Post-employment

Pensions medical benefits
2011 2010 2011 2010
Present value of funded obligations $57,802 $1,916
Fair value of plan assets (53,690) -
4,112 1,916
Unrecognized actuarial losses (4,351) 155
Liability/(asset) included in balance sheet $(239) $2,071

The amounts recognized in the statement of compsedeincome are as follows:

Post-employment

Pensions medical benefits
2011 2010 2011 2010
Current service cost $2,894 $91
Interest cost 3,073 153
Expected return on plan assets (3,092) -
Amortisation of actuarial cost 128 -
$3,003 $244

Actual return on the plan assets $(3,754)

Movement in the (asset)/liability recognized in Htatement of financial position:

Post-employment

Pensions medical benefits

2011 2010 2011 2010

January 1 $(678) $1,866
Pension/benefit cost 3,003 244
Contributions paid (2,564) (39)
December 31 $(239) $2,071
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NOTE P — POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONScontinued

Pension and other post employment obligations continued
Movement in the defined benefit obligation over ylear is as follows:

Post-employment

Pensions medical benefits

2011 2010 2011 2010

January 1 $51,989 $1,932
Current service cost 2,894 91
Interest cost 3,073 153
Employees’ contributions 812 -
Experience (gain)/loss 1,598 (221)
Benefits paid (2,564) (39)
December 31 $57,802 $1,916

Movement in the fair value of plan assets overyiar is as follows:

Pensions

2011 2010
January 1 $48,423
Expected return on plan assets 3,092
Experience gain/(loss) 356
Employer’s contributions 2,564
Employees’ contributions 812
Benefits paid (1,557)
December 31 $53,690

The principal actuarial assumptions used for actogmpurposes are:

Post-employment

Pensions medical benefits
2011 2010 2011 2010
(%) (%) (%) (%)
Discount rate 5.5 7.75
Expected return on plan assets 5.5-6.0
Future salary increases 5.5
Future pension increases 0-2.5
Annual increase in benefit - - 6.25
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NOTE P — POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONScontinued
Pension and other post-employment obligations continued

Mortality rate

Assumptions regarding future mortality experienoe set based on actuarial advice, based on publishe
statistics and experience.

The average life expectancy in years of a pensiaiiging at age 62 on the reporting date is devi:

2011 2010
Male 19.35 19.35
Female 23.32 23.32

A one-percentage-point change in assumed heakhtigard rates would have the following effects:

1%
1 % point point
increase decrease

Effect on total service and interest cost compaent $ 43 $ (45)
Effect on post-retirement benefit obligation 336 (271)

Post-employment benefits are comprised as follows:

Asset allocation as at December 31 — New Pensiam Pl 2011 2010
Equity securities 55% 55%
Debt securities 42% 42%
Other 3% 3%
Total 100% 100%
Asset allocation as at December 31 — Pension Scheme 2011 2010
Debt securities 93% 93%
Other 7% 7%
Total 100% 100%

CDB'’s contributions to both pension plans in 2014 estimated at $2,533 (2009 - $2,552).
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NOTE P — POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT.Scontinued

Pension and other post-employment obligations continued

The expected return on plan assets is determinecbbyidering the expected returns available on the
assets underlying the current investment policype€ted yields on fixed interest investments aeta
on gross redemption yields as at the reporting, delbde equity returns reflect long-term real ratds
return experienced in respective markets.

As at December 31

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Present value of defined benefit obligation $57,802 $51,989 $47,910  $45,872
Fair value of plan assets (53,690) (48,423) (43,386) (45,522)
Deficit $4,112 $3,566 $4,524 $350
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities $1,152 $ 538 $ (240) $(750)
Experience adjustments on plan assets $356 898 $(6,194) $ 102

NOTE Q — BORROWINGS

It is the Bank’s policy to limit borrowing and gwaeatees chargeable to the Bank's Ordinary Capital
Resources to 100 percent of the callable capitésahvestment grade non-borrowing members ples th
cash reserves. At December 31, 2011, total bongsvamounted to $857,875 (2010: $653,240). Also at
December 31, 2011, the ratio of total outstandiogdwings to the borrowing limit of $1,058,251 (201
-$833,901) was 81.1% (2010 — 78.3%).
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NOTE Q — BORROWINGS.continued

A summary of the borrowings was as follows:

Original  Translation Repayments Currenc
amounts’  adjustments to date swag’  Undrawn Outstanding  Due dates

Short term Borrowing
Floating Rate Note — US$ 20,000 (20,000) - - 120
Floating Rate Note — US$ 20,000 - - 20,000 2012

40,000 - (20,000) - 20,000
CDB Market Borrowings
4.35% Notes — Yen 60,000 23,654 - - 83,654 2030
2.75% Notes — Yen 100,000 51,324 - 10,196 161,520 2022
1.12% Two Year Bonds — US$ 75,000 - - - 75,000 1220
One Year Discount Note — US$ 9,911 - (9,911) - - 2011
One Year Discount Note — US$ 9,925 - - - 9,925 120
Floating Rate Note — US$ 60,000 - (60,000) - - 012
Floating Rate Note — US$ 175,000 - - 175,000 3201
Floating Rate Note — US$ 149,869 - 149,869 2014
Floating Rate Note — US$ 119,817 - - - 119,817 1220

759,522 74,978 (69,911) 10,196 774,785

European Investment Bank
Global Loan 11 - A — US$ 13,034 - (13,034) - - 012
Global Loan 111 - US$ 51,157 - - - 51,157 2023

64,191 - (13,034) - 51,157
Inter-American Development Bank
Loan 926/0C-RG-US$ 19,347 - (8,776) - 10,571 2021
Sub-total 883,060 74,978 (111,721) 10,196 856,513
Accrued interest - - - - 1,362
Total — December 31 $864,422  $74,978 $(111,721) $10,196 $857,875

1/ Net of cancellations and borrowings fully paid.
2/ Unwinding of fair value hedge. .
3/ Relates to amounts withdrawn and outstanding
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NOTE Q — BORROWINGS.continued

Original ~ Translation Repayments Currenc

amounts’  adjustments to date swag’  Undrawn Outstanding  Due dates
CDB Market Borrowings
4.35% Notes — Yen 60,000 19,641 - - - 79,641 2030
2.75% Notes — Yen 100,000 42,647 - 11,123 - 153,770 2022
1.12% Two Year Bonds — US$ 75,000 - - - - 75,000 120
One Year discount Note — US$ 9,911 - - - - 9,911 1120
Floating Rate Note — US$ 60,000 - (60,000) - - - 012
Floating Rate Note — US$ 149,823 - - - - 149,823 1420
Floating Rate Note — US$ 119,574 - - - - 119,574 0122

574,308 62,288 (60,000) 11,123 - 587,719
European Investment Bank
Global Loan 11 - A — US$ 13,034 - (11,409) - - 25,6 2011
Global Loan 111 - US$ 51,157 - - - - 51,157 2023
64,191 - (11,409) - - 52,782

Inter-American Development Bank
Loan 926/0C-RG-US$ 19,347 - (7,664) - - 11,683 2021
Sub-total 657,846 62,288 (79,073) 11,123 - 652,184
Accrued interest 1,541 - - - - 1,056
Total — December 31 $659,387  $62,288 $(79,073) $11,123 - $653,240

1/ Net of cancellations and borrowings fully paid.

2/ Unwinding of fair value hedge.
3/ Relates to amounts withdrawn and outstanding®tRs to amounts withdrawn and outstanding
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NOTE Q — BORROWINGS.continued

Currencies repayable on outstanding borrowings aerellows:

2011
Outstanding Outstanding
at Net Currency at
Currencies Repayable December Translation Interest Draw- swap December
2010 Adjustment Paid downs amortisation Repayments 2011
United States dollars $419,699 $ - $- $225,216 $ - $(32,649) $612,266
Japanese yen 232,485 12,689 - - (927) - 244,247
Sub-total 652,184 12,689 - 225,216 (927) (32,649) 56,813
Accrued interest 1,056 - 306 - 1,362
Total — December 31 $653,240 $12,689 $306 $225,216 $(927) $(32,649) $857,875
2010
Outstanding Outstanding
at Net Currency at
Currencies Repayable December Translation Interest  Draw- swap December
2009 Adjustment Paid downs amortisation Repayments 2010
United States dollars $511,080 $ - $- $86,126 $ - $(177,507) $419,699
Japanese yen 205,448 27,964 - (927) 232,485
Sub-total 716,528 27,964 - 86,126 (927) (177,507) 52,834
Accrued interest 1,541 (485 1,056
Total — December 31 $718,069 $27,964 $(485 $86,126 $(927) $(177,507) $653,240

The current and non-current portions of borrowiagsat December 31 were as follows:

2011 2010
Current $232,375 $13,705
Non-current 625,500 639,535
Total $857,875 $653,240

YRelates to amounts withdrawn and outstanding
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NOTE R — EQUITY

Equity is comprised of capital, retained earningd seserves. These are further detailed as follows
Capital

Subscriptions to the capital stock of the Bank arade up of the initial capital, five additional
subscriptions and four general capital increasgsthe fortieth meeting of the Board of Governaons i

May 2010 in the Bahamas, a general capital incread0% was approved. The Bank’s capital as at
December 31 was as follows:

Capital stock 2011 2010
Authorised capital — 312,971 (2010 — 312,971) share

Subscribed capital — 239,463 (2010 — 146,022) share $1,501,892 $937,193
Less callable capital — 187,032 (2010 — 113,758)esh 1,170,887 730,433
Paid-up capital — 52,611 (2010 — 32,263) shares $331,005 $206,760
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NOTE R — EQUITY...continued

Capital ...continued

The subscriptions by member countries and theingqiower at December 31, were as follows:

Member

Regional States and Territories
Jamaica

Trinidad and Tobago
Bahamas

Guyana

Colombia

Mexico

Venezuela

Barbados

Belize

Dominica

Grenada

St. Lucia

St. Vincent and the Grenadines
Antigua and Barbuda

St. Kitts and Nevis
Anguilla ¥

Montserrat

British Virgin Islandd/
Cayman Island¥

Turks and Caicos Islands
Haiti

Sub-total

2011
Voting Power
Receivable
Total Sub- % of from members
No. of % of  subscribed Callable Paid-up  scriptions No. of total non-negotiable
Shares Total Capital Capital Capital matured votes votes demand notes
48,354 20.18 291,659 227,614 64,045 31,9648,504 19.97 13,733
48,354 20.18 291,659 227,614 ,0464 31,961 48,504 19.97 11,037
14,258 5.95 86,001 67,115 18,886 9,426 0844 5.93 1,612
4,167 1.73 25,134 19,633 5,501 5,501 4,317 1.78 033,2
7,795 3.25 47,017 36,691 10,326 5,154 57,94 3.27 628
3,118 1.30 18,807 14,687 4,120 4,120 3,268 1.35 -
3,118 1.30 18,807 14,687 4,120 4,120 83,26 1.35 3,141
9,074 3.79 54,732 42,717 12,015 5,999 49,22 3.80 1,070
2,148 0.90 12,956 10,109 2,847 1,419 2,298 0.95 -
859 0.36 5,181 4,047 1,134 1,134 1,009 0.42 286
736 0.31 4,439 3,468 971 971 886 0.36 213
2,148 0.90 12,956 10,109 2,847 1,419 9,2 0.95 360
2,148 0.90 12,956 0,109 2,847 1,419 2,298 0.95 97
859 0.90 5,181 4,047 1,134 4,13 1,009 0.42 296
859 0.36 5,181 4,047 1,134 34,1 1,009 0.42 255
182 0.36 1,098 857 241 241 - - 14
213 0.08 1,285 1,001 284 283 1,504 0.62 -
213 0.09 1,285 1,001 284 283 - - -
213 0.09 1,285 1,001 284 283 - - 8
533 0.22 3,215 2,509 706 354 - - -
875 0.37 5,278 4,120 1,158 1,158 1,025 0.42 -
150,224 62.68 906,112 707,183 198,929 4739 152,774 62.88 35,953
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NOTE R — EQUITY...continued

Capital ...continued

2011
Voting Power
Receivable
Total Sub- % of from members

No. of % of  subscribed Callable Paid-up  scriptions No. of total non-negotiable
Member Shares Total capital Capital Capital matured votes votes demand notes
Sub-total 150,224 62.68 906,112 707,183 198,929 AY@9 152,774 62.88 35,953
Non-Regional States
Canada 26,004 10.85 156,849 122,408 34,441 17,1906,152 10.77 -
United Kingdom 26,004 10.85 156,849 122,408 34,441 17,190 26,154 10.77 2,150
Italy 6,235 2.60 37,608 29,375 8.233 8,234 6,385 2.63 711
Germany 15,588 6.50 94,023 73,376 20,647 10,303 7385, 6.48 5,549
China 15,588 6.50 94,023 73,376 20,647 10,303 15,738 6.48 -

89,419 37.32 539,352 420,943 118,409 63,220 90,169 37.12 8,410
Sub-total 239,643 100.00 1,445,464 1,128,126 387,33 172,694 242,943 100.00 44,363
Additional subscriptions
China - - 18,804 14,688 4,116 4,116 - - -
Colombia - - 1,810 905 905 905 - - -
Germany - - 12,546 9,681 2,865 2,865 - - -
Italy - - 12,546 9,681 2,865 2,865 - - -
Mexico - - 6,273 4,841 1,432 1,432 - - -
Venezuela - - 1,810 905 905 905 - - -
Haiti - - 2,639 2,060 579 579 - - -
Sub-total - - 56,428 42,761 13,667 13,667 - - -
Total - December 31 239,643 100.00 1,501,892 1,880, 331,005 186,361 242,943 100.00 44,363
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NOTE R — EQUITY...continued

Capital ...continued

Member

Regional States and Territories
Jamaica

Trinidad and Tobago
Bahamas

Guyana

Colombia

Mexico

Venezuela

Barbados

Belize

Dominica

Grenada

St. Lucia

St. Vincent and the Grenadines
Antigua and Barbuda

St. Kitts and Nevis
Anguilla ¥

Montserrat

British Virgin Islandd/
Cayman Island¥

Turks and Caicos Islands
Haiti

Sub-total

2010
Voting Power
Receivable
Total Sub- % of from members
No. of % of  subscribed Callable Paid-up  scriptions No. of total non-negotiable
Shares Total Capital Capital Capital matured votes votes demand notes
19,342 13.25 116,666 91,122 25,544 25,5449,492 13.05 13,849
19,342 13.25 116,666 91,122 5425, 25,544 19,492 13.05 10,896
14,258 9.76 86,000 67,115 18,885 7,534 0844 9.65 1,612
4,167 2.84 25,134 19,633 5,501 5,501 4,317 2.89 463,1
7,795 5.34 47,017 36,691 10,326 4,120 57,94 5.32 628
3,118 2.14 18,807 14,687 4,120 4,120 3,268 2.19 -
3,118 2.14 18,807 14,687 4,120 4,120 83,26 2.19 3,203
9,074 6.21 54,732 42,717 12,015 4,795 49,22 6.18 1,070
2,148 1.47 12,956 10,109 2,847 1,134 2,298 1.54 -
859 0.59 5,181 4,047 1,134 1,134 1,009 0.68 286
736 0.50 4,439 3,468 971 971 886 0.59 213
859 0.59 5,181 4,047 1,134 1,134 1,009 0.68 360
2,148 1.47 12,956 0,109 2,847 1,134 2,298 1.54 97
859 0.59 5,181 4,047 1,134 4,13 1,009 0.68 296
859 0.59 5,181 4,047 1,134 34,1 1,009 0.68 255
182 0.12 1,098 857 241 241 - - 14
213 0.15 1,285 1,002 283 283 1,504 1.01 -
213 0.15 1,285 1,002 283 283 - - -
213 0.15 1,285 1,002 283 283 - - 8
533 0.37 3,215 2,509 706 283 - - -
875 0.60 5,278 4,120 1,158 1,158 1,025 0.69 -
90,911 62.25 $548,350 $428,140 $120,210 91,584 93,461 62.59 $35,933

1/ In accordance with Article 3 of the Agreement bishing the Bank and Board of Governors ResoluNon 4/81, these territories are considered asgiesmember of the Bank for the purpose of ArsckS and 32 of the

Agreement
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

NOTE R — EQUITY...continued

Capital...continued

2010
Voting Power
Receivable
Total Sub- % of from members
No. of % of  subscribed Callable Paid-up  scriptions No. of total non-negotiable
Member Shares Total capital Capital Capital matured votes votes demand notes
Sub-total 90,911 62.25 $548,350 $428,140 $120,210 91,584 93,461 62.59 $35,933
Non-Regional States
Canada 26,004 17.81 156,849 122,408 34,441 13,7406,152 17.52 -
United Kingdom 10,402 7.12 62,742 49,002 13.740 743, 10,552 7.07 2,150
Italy 6,235 4.27 37,608 29,374 8.234 8,234 6,385 4.28 736
Germany 6,235 4.27 37,608 29,374 8.234 8,234 6,385  4.28 5,549
China 6,235 4.27 37,608 29,374 8.234 8,234 6,385 4.28 -
55,111 37.75 332,415 259,532 72,883 52,182 55,861 7.413 8,435
Sub-total 146,022 100.00 $880,765 $687,672 $193,0935143,766 149,322 100.00 $44,368
Additional subscriptions
China - - 18,804 14,688 4,116 4,116 - - -
Colombia - - 1,810 905 905 905 - - -
Germany - - 12,546 9,681 2,865 2,865 - - -
Italy - - 12,546 9,681 2,865 2,865 - - -
Mexico - - 6,273 4,841 1,432 1,432 - - -
Venezuela - - 1,810 905 905 905 - - -
Haiti - - 2,639 2,060 579 579 - - -
Sub-total - - $ 56,428 $ 42,761 $ 13,667 $ 13,667 - - -
Total - December 31 146,022 100.00 $937,193 $738,43 $206,760 $157,433 149,322 100.00 $44,368

v
Agreement
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

NOTE R — EQUITY...continued
Members’ subscriptions

The Bank’s capital stock is divided into paid-irasés and callable shares. Payment for paid-in sisatescribed by
its members is made over a period of years detednim advance. The Bank’s Articles state that pantnoé the
amount subscribed to the callable capital is sulipecall by the Bank to meet its obligations irear pursuant to
Article 7, paragraph 6 taking into account paraggsafb) and (d) of Article 13 on borrowings of funds on
guarantees, only as and when required by the Bank.

The Agreement establishing the CDB also allowsafonember country to withdraw from the Bank, at Whicne
the Bank is required to arrange for the repurclaisihe former member’s shares. Only one memberevas
withdrawn its membership voluntarily. No other nmnhas ever indicated to the Bank that it inteidsithdraw
its membership from the Bank. The stability in thembership reflects the fact that the purposé@Bank is to
contribute to the sustainable economic developnaemt social progress of its Borrowing Member Cowstri
individually and jointly. Moreover, there is a sificant financial disincentive to withdrawing meership. The
repurchase price of the shares is the value shgwthéo books of the Bank on the date a country cetsde a
member. However, the former member shall remaibléi for direct obligations and contingent liakekt to the
Bank for so long as any parts of the loans or quees contracted before the date of withdrawaloatetanding.
The Bank may partially or fully offset amounts dioe shares purchased against the member’s liaslitin loans
and guarantees due to the Bank. Were a membathdraw, the Bank may set the dates in respectaypiments for
shares repurchased. If, for example, paying a formember would have adverse consequences for th&'Ba
financial position, the Bank could defer paymentiluhe risk had passed, and indefinitely if appiage. If the
Bank were to terminate its operations within sixning of the termination date, all liabilities oktBank would first
be settled out of the assets of the Bank and ttiemecessary, out of members’ callable capital ,obefany
distribution could be made to any member countngjuiding the withdrawing member. Based on the abov
discussion, management has determined that mendtenes are deemed to be a permanent investmir bank
and are appropriately classified as equity.

Under the agreement, payment for the paid-up sharése original capital stock subscribed to by rbens was

made in installments. Of each installment, up @op&rcent was payable in non-negotiable, non-istdsearing
promissory notes or other obligations issued bystifescribing member and payable at their par vaosm demand.
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

NOTE R — EQUITY...continued

Retained earnings and reserves
Retained earnings and reserves comprise the faifpelements:

2011 2010
Ordinary reserves $398,551 $370,441
Surplus 11,648 11,648
Unallocated net income 21,535 28,110
Derivative fair value earnings net of cumulativéeet of foreign exchange
translation 42,007 22,758
Special reserve 6,254 6,254
General banking reserve 7,856 7,856

$487,851 $447,067

In accordance with Article 39 of the Agreement, Beard of Governors shall determine at least aryuahé
disposition of the net income of the Bank arisiranf its Ordinary operations. In previous yeass it income
has been allocated to the Ordinary Reserves oB#mk which may be usedhter alia, to meet possible future
losses on loans and guarantees made by the Baitk @rdinary operations and possible future lodses
currency devaluations.

Special reserve

In accordance with Article 18 of the Agreement, aussions and guarantee fees received on loans o
the Ordinary Capital Resources of the Bank areiredquo be set aside in a Special Reserve which lsbakept
for meeting liabilities of the Bank. The assetsled Special Reserve are to be held in such litprch as the
Board of Directors may decide.

At the One Hundred and Nineteenth Meeting of tharBwf Directors held on July 21, 1988, the Boagdided
that appropriations to the Special Reserve shoeldiscontinued with effect from January 1, 198®ursuant
thereto, no commission is charged on loans apprafted January 1, 1989, and all amounts receivet #iat
date as commission on loans approved before thatadla treated as interest and accounted for ds s@wring
1993, the Special Reserve was converted into UStatks dollars and is valued at $6,254.

General banking reserve

Loan loss provisions amounting to $7,856 (2010,8%8) are deemed to be a provision for general ihgniisks
and are reported as a general banking reserve.
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

NOTE S — INCOME FROM LOANS, INVESTMENTS and casHamzes

Income from loans

Income from loans for the years ended Decembe?@1l] and 2010 was as follows:

2011 2010
Interest income $38,288 $40,223
Other fees 2,294 2,439
Total $40,582 $42,662

Other financial income and expenses

Other financial income and expenses is comprisedeohet interest position on the swaps and indude
other finance charges.

NOTE T — ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses incurred by the Bank alecated between the Ordinary Capital Resourcestlaad
Special Funds Resources in accordance with a methaltbcation approved by the Board of Directors.

Administrative expenses are as follows:

2011 2010
Staff related $6,465 $6,508
Professional fees and consultancies 650 579
Travel 508 460
Depreciation 591 607
Other 401 367
Utilities and maintenance 426 428
Training and seminars 235 236
Supplies and printing 67 80
Board of Governors and Directors 191 212
Computer services 400 421
Communications 175 190
Bank charges 41 50
Insurance 33 30
Total administrative expenses $10,183 $10,168
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

NOTE T — ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES.continued

Staff costs charged to the OCR are as follows:

2011 2010
Salaries and allowances $4,982 $4,839
Pension costs — hybrid scheme 96 115
Pension costs — defined benefit plan 943 1,156
Other benefits 444 398

$6,465  $6,508

NOTE U — DERIVATIVE FAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENT

Derivative fair value adjustment of ($32,290) (201$41,094) included in the statement of incomeuisas:

2011 2010
Cross currency interest rate swap $(31,925) $(38,796)
Maintenance of value on currency holdings (13) (25)

$(31,938) $(38,821)

NOTE V — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The movement in interfund receivables in accourmtgivables at December 31 is as follows:

2011 2010
January 1 $9,476 $16,007
Advances during the year 31,289 23,124
Allocation of administrative expenses 12,799 10,532
Repayments during the year (45,324) (40,187)
December 31 $8,240 $9,476
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
ORDINARY CAPITAL RESOURCES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars )

NOTE V — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS.continued

Key management compensation as at December 3¥oH@ss:

2011 2010

Key management compensation
Salaries and allowances $1,420 $1,616
Post-employment benefits 632
$2,248

In 2008, the interest subsidy fund was establidghethe Board of Directors of the Bank to subsidiaet of
the interest payments for which certain borroweesliable on loans to the OCR. During 2010, $4310@-
$346) was received from the Other Special Fundst@rest on behalf of the borrowers.

NOTE W — COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEES

At December 31, 2011, CDB had undisbursed loannbak of $231,275 (2010 - $263,088) as well as
approved capital expenditure commitments amourttngl,080 (2010- $2,370) for the 2011 financialryea
Of the amounts previously approved $839 (2010 8%#ad been committed at December 31, 2011.

CDB has provided a partial guarantee of a loan nbgdenother financial institution. Guarantee, ipart of

a bond issuance, is for the payment of no more tiandebt service payments on a rolling and non-
accelerable basis. The payment cannot exceed theaént of $8,300 in any one year. This amount
represents the maximum potential amount of undisisslifuture payments that CDB could be required to
make under the guarantee, and is not includedeiBtiance Sheet. The guarantee has a maturity yédra,
and will expire in 2020. In September 2011, onet debvice payment amounting to $4,100 was called.

At its two-hundredth and forty ninth meeting held@ecember 8, 2011, CDB issued another guarantae in

amount not exceeding the equivalent of USD12,008 wispect to the Bonds to be issued by the Govemntm
of St. Kitts and Nevis.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Governors
Caribbean Development Bank

We have audited the accompanying special purpose financial staterhdr@Special Development Fundf

the Caribbean Development Bank(the "Bank™) for the year ended December 31, 2011, which ceenfire
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2011 anththensnt of income and accumulated income
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accoumtitigies and other explanatory
information. The special purpose financial statements have beeargutem the basis set out in Note A.

Management's responsibility for the special purpose finaaigtatements

Management is responsible for the preparation and presentatibasef special purpose financial statements
on the basis described in Note A. This responsibility mhetudesigning, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and presentatispeafal purpose financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermdecsng and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonablecirctimastances.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these apgeirpose financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Internationatl&tds on Auditing. International Standards
on Auditing require that we comply with ethical requiremestsl plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the special purpose financial staemadémgs of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain auditenwe about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the'sijditgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the special purposecfadatatements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemabl relevant to the entity's preparation and
presentation of the special purpose financial statements intordesign audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressingpinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the apatgmess of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates, if any, made by managememt] as evaluating the overall
presentation of the special purpose financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficieragordpriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying special purpose financialns¢aits have been prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with the basis set out in Note A.

Chartered Accountants
March 7, 2012
Bridgetown, Barbados



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As of December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

2011 2010
Unified Other Total Unified Other Total
Assets
Cash and time deposits — Note A $33,646 $23,548 $57,194 $57,660 $11,259 $68,919
Investments — at fair value (Schedule 1) 240,828 36,599 277,427 202,615 54,340 256,955
Loans (Schedule 2) 448,451 20,570 469,021 431,044 21,453 452,497
Receivables — other
Accounts receivable including interfund
receivables 1 - 1 1 - 1
$722,926 $80,717 $803,643 $691,320 $87,052 $778,372
Receivable from contributors
Non-negotiable demand notes (Schedule 3) 59,247 - 59,247 62,917 - 62,917
Contribution in arrears 12,287 - 12,287 11,867 - 11,867
71,534 - 71,534 74,784 - 74,784
Total assets $794,460$80,717 $875,177 $766,104 $87,052 $853,156
Liabilities and Funds
Liabilities
Bank overdraft - - - - - -
Accounts payable including interfund
payables 70,763 939 71,702 65,371 953 66,324
Accrued charges on contributions - 9 9 - 12 12
$70,763 $948 $71,711 $65,371 $965 $66,336

The accompanying notes form an integral part ofetfanancial statements.



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As of December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

2011 2010

Unified Other Total Unified Other Total
Funds
Contributed resources (Schedule 3)
Contributions $970,353 $43,786 $1,014,139 $979,672  $44,907 $1,024,579
Less amounts not yet made available (54,006) - (54,006) (111,261) - (111,261)
Amounts made available 916,347 43,786 960,133 868,411 44,907 913,318
Allocation to technical assistance and
grant resources (320,950) (2,266) (323,216) (286,300) (2,266) (288,566)

595,397 41,520 636,917 582,111 42,641 624,752
Accumulated net income (Schedule 4) 41,832 37,343 79,175 40,957 42,540 83,497
Technical assistance and grant
resources — Note E 86,468 906 87,374 77,665 906 78,571

$723,697 $79,769 $803,466  $700,733  $86,087 $786,820

Total liabilities and funds $794,460 $80,717  $875,177 $766,104 $87,052 $853,156

The accompanying notes form an integral part afeHfanancial statements.



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES — SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND ACCUMULATED N ET INCOME

For the year ended December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

2011

2010

Unified Other Total

Unified Other Total

$9,502 $512  $10,014

2,840 805 3,645

12,342 1,317 13,659

11,574 939 12,513
- 116 116

(1,923) (421)  (2,344)

Income
From loans $10,054  $488 $10,542
From investments and cash balances 3,434 959 4,393
Gross income 13,488 1,447 14,935
Expenses
Administrative expenses 12,260 1,046 13,306
Charges on contributions - 86 86
Exchange 353 (388) (35)
Total expenses 12,613 744 13,357

9,651 634 10,285

Net income and total comprehensive
income for the year $875 $703 $1,578

$2,691  $683 $3,374

Accumulated net income and total comprehensive incoe
Accumulated net income and total

comprehensive income — beginning of

year $40,957 $42,540 $83,497
Appropriations for technical assistance - (5,900) (5,900)

Net income and total comprehensive
income for the year 875 703 1,578

$38,266 $42,757 $81,023

- (900) (900)

2,691 683 3,374

Accumulated net income and total
comprehensive income— end of year $41,832 $37,343 $79,175

$40,957 $42,540 $83,497

The accompanying notes form an integral part afeHaancial statements.

-4 -



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND (UNIFIED)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

2011 2010
Operating activities
Net income for the year $875 $2,691
Adjustments for non-cash items
Unrealised gain on trading portfolio 654 900
Interest income (13,488) (12,342)
Total cash flows used in operating activities befonanges in operating
assets and liabilities (12,834) (11,442)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable - (2)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable 5,392 (4,717)
Cash used in operating activities (7,442) (6,726)
Disbursements on loans (35,266) (34,570)
Principal repayments to the Bank on loans 18,017 16,471
Interest received 13,512 12,570
Net increase in trading securities (39,049) 3,353
Technical assistance disbursements (14,332) (12,078)
Net cash used in operating activities (64,560) (20,980)
Financing activities
Contributions
Increase in contributions for loans 13,585 26,893
(Increase)/decrease in receivables from contrilsutor 3,250 (11,504)
Technical assistance allocation 23,135 23,274
Net cash provided by financing activities 39,970 38,663
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalent (23,715) 20,374
Net foreign exchange difference (299) (1,359)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 57,660 38,645
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 33,646 $57,660

The accompanying notes form an integral part afeHaancial statements.



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES — SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND (OTHER)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

Operating activities
Net income for the year
Adjustments for non-cash items
Unrealised loss (gain) on trading portfolio
Interest income
Interest expense
Total cash flows from operating activities beforarges in operating
assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease in accounts receivable
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable

Cash used in operating activities
Disbursements on loans
Principal repayments to the Bank on loans
Interest received
Interest paid
Net decrease/(increase) in trading securities
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities

Financing activities:
Contributions
Repayments of contributions
Net cash used in financing activities
Appropriations of accumulated net income

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent
Net foreign exchange difference
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2011 2010
$703 $683
26 371
(1,447) (1,317)
86 116
(1,335) (830)
(14) (355)
(1,349) (1,185)
(376) ((180)
1,254 971
1,757 1,365
(89) (119)
17,410 4,072
18,607 4,924
(1,017)
(1,017) (987)
(5,900) (900)
12,393 3,720
(104) 218
11,259 7,321
$23,548  $11,259

The accompanying notes form an integral part afetfanancial statements.




CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUND RESOURCES — SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

Government and Agency
Obligations

Supranationals

Euro Commercial Paper
Sub-total

Accrued interest

Total

2011

SCHEDULE 1

2010

Market value

Market value

Unified Other Total

Unified Other Total

$165,054 $29,115 $194,169

$155,892 $41,228 $197,120

50,778 5,761 56,539 10,429 2,763 13,192
23,822 1,495 25,317 34,938 9,816 44,754
239,654 36,371 276,025 201,259 53,807 255,066
1,174 228 1,402 1,356 533 1,889

$240,828 $36,599 $277,427

$202,615 $54,340 $256,955

Residual term to contractual maturity

One month to three months
Over three months to one year
From one year to five years
From five years to ten years

Total

2011 2010
$37,944 $67,937
58,478 32,034
142,244 115,436
38,761 41,548
__sa77.427  __ $256,995



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND (UNIFIED)

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS

December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 2
2011
% of
Loans total
Total approved loans
Member countries loans but not Signed  Principal Out- out-
in which loans approved yet agree- repaid to Undis- standing stand-
have been made Y effective ments bank bursed 2 ing
Anguilla $10,342 $695 $9,647 $6,035 $19 $3,593 0.8
Antigua and Barbuda 11,757 - 11,757 7,531 1,123 03,1 0.7
Bahamas 1,619 - 1,619 1,619 - - -
Barbados 5,724 - 5,724 5,224 - 500 0.1
Belize 79,256 - 79,256 25,270 15,252 38,734 8.7
British Virgin Islands 11,009 - 11,009 8,909 300 800 0.4
Cayman Islands 4,226 - 4,226 4,161 65 - -
Dominica 99,678 10,300 89,378 28,786 10,450 50,142 11.2
Grenada 114,176 6,580 107,596 25,766 15,736 66,09414.8
Guyana 140,373 - 140,373 24,101 15,368 100,904 22.6
Jamaica 150,519 - 150,519 35,054 50,765 64,700 14.5
Montserrat 10,432 - 10,432 5,055 2,500 2,877 0.7
St. Kitts and Nevis 76,973 17,760 59,213 20,886 48,1 35,181 7.9
St. Lucia 102,453 7,233 95,220 25,557 31,757 37,906 8.5
St. Vincent & the Grenadines 73,925 14,550 59,375 3,884 5,432 30,079 6.8
Trinidad & Tobago 5,218 1,000 4,218 4,218 - - -
Turks & Caicos Islands 12,815 - 12,815 5,374 1,051 6,390 1.4
Regional 8,947 - 8,947 5,028 - 3,919 0.9
Sub-total 919,442 58,118 861,324 262,438 152,964 5,922 100.0
Accrued interest - - - - - 2,529
Total — December 31 $921,971 $58,118  $863,853  $262,438 $152,964  $448,45

1/ Net of lapses and cancellations

2/ There are no overdue installments of princi@@0p - $28).



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND (UNIFIED)

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS ...continued

December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 2
2010
% of
Loans total
Total approved loans
Member countries loans but not Signed  Principal Out- out-
in which loans approved yet agree- repaid to Undis- standing stand-
have been made Y effective ments bank bursed 2 ing
Anguilla $10,344 $695 $9,649 $5,679 $300 $3,670 0.9
Antigua and Barbuda 11,820 - 11,820 7,335 1,123 63,3 0.8
Bahamas 1,622 - 1,622 1,622 - - -
Barbados 5,733 - 5,733 5,233 - 500 -
Belize 78,217 8,181 70,036 23,349 9,432 37,255 0.1
British Virgin Islands 11,011 - 11,011 8,765 300 9416 8.7
Cayman Islands 4,278 - 4,278 4,213 65 - 0.5
Dominica 89,439 1,714 87,725 27,445 13,815 46,465 0.81
Grenada 106,940 2,000 104,960 24,378 15,523 65,03915.2
Guyana 138,676 10,542 128,134 21,646 9,686 96,802 2.6 2
Jamaica 151,625 - 151,625 31,578 66,751 53,296 124
Montserrat 7,933 - 7,933 4,870 - 3,063 0.7
St. Kitts and Nevis 58,470 1,408 57,062 19,059 4,53 36,469 8.5
St. Lucia 84,230 - 84,230 23,356 21,077 39,797 9.3
St. Vincent & the Grenadines 57,945 - 57,945 22,385 5,441 30,119 7.0
Trinidad & Tobago 5,218 1,000 4,218 4,218 - - -
Turks & Caicos Islands 12,866 - 12,866 4,994 1,079 6,793 1.6
Regional 8,969 - 8,968 4,871 - 4,097 1.0
Sub-total 845,335 25,540 819,795 244,996 146,126 8,643 100.0
Accrued interest - - - - - 2,371
Total — December 31 $845,335 $25,540 $822,166  $244,996 $146,126  $481,04




CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND (OTHER)
SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS ...continued

December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 2
2011
% of
Loans total
Total approved loans
Member countries loans but not Signed  Principal Out- out-
in which loans approved yet agree- repaid to Undis- standing stand-
have been made Y effective ments bank bursed 2l ing
Anguilla $1,430 $ $1,430 $1,430 $ - $ - -
Antigua and Barbuda 3,750 3,750 3,256 - 494 2.4
Bahamas 773 773 773 - -
Barbados 1,614 1,614 1,614 - - -
Belize 27,718 27,718 19,590 - 8,128 39.7
British Virgin Islands 4,528 4,528 4,376 - 152 70.
Cayman Islands 609 609 609 - - -
Dominica 13,915 13,915 11,852 - 2,063 10.1
Grenada 4,874 4,874 4,706 - 168 0.8
Guyana 22 22 22 - - -
Jamaica 6,871 6,871 5,019 - 1,852 9.1
Montserrat 786 786 786 - - -
St. Kitts and Nevis 11,879 11,879 6,070 144 5,665 27.7
St. Lucia 21,878 21,878 20,794 477 607 3.0
St. Vincent & the Grenadines 12,343 12,343 11,022 - 1,321 6.5
Turks & Caicos Islands 1,535 1,535 1,535 - - -
Regional 2,518 2,518 2,518 - - -
Sub-total 117,043 117,043 95,972 621 20,450 100.0
Accrued interest - - - - 125
Total — December 31 $117,163 $ $117,163 $923,9 $621 $20,570

1/ Net of lapses and cancellations

2/ There were no overdue installments of princ{gaD9-$0)
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES — SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND (OTHER)
SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS ...continued

December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

2010
% of
Loans total
Total approved loans
Member countries loans but not Signed  Principal Out- out-
in which loans approved yet agree- repaid to Undis- standing stand-
have been made Y effective ments bank bursed 2 ing
Anguilla $1,440 $ - $1,440  $1,440 $ - $ - -
Antigua and Barbuda 3,788 - 3,788 3,266 - 522 25
Bahamas 773 - 773 773 - -
Barbados 1,616 - 1,616 1,616 - - -
Belize 27,805 - 27,805 19,231 - 8,574 40.2
British Virgin Islands 4,614 - 4,614 4,416 - 198 90.
Cayman Islands 621 - 621 621 - - -
Dominica 14,123 - 14,123 11,995 - 2,128 10.0
Grenada 4,957 - 4,957 4,789 - 168 0.8
Guyana 22 - 22 22 - - -
Jamaica 6,871 - 6,871 4,868 - 2,003 9.4
Montserrat 787 - 787 787 - - -
St. Kitts and Nevis 11,906 - 11,906 5,802 519 5,585 26.2
St. Lucia 22,092 - 22,092 20,837 477 778 3.7
St. Vincent & the Grenadines 12,348 12,348 10,976 - 1,372 6.4
Turks & Caicos Islands 1,543 - 1,543 1,543 - - -
Regional 2,519 - 2,519 2,519 - - -
Sub-total 117,825 - 117,825 95,501 996 21,328 100.0
Accrued interest - - - - - 125
Total — December 31 $117,950 $ - $117,950 $94,5 $996 $21,453
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS ...continued

December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 2
2011
Loans % of
Total approved total
loans but not Signed  Principal Out- loans
Analysis by approved yet agree- repaid to Undis-  standing out-
Contributor Y effective ments bank bursed 2" standing

Special Development Fund — Unified

Members/Contributors
Accrued interest

Total SDF — (Unified)

Special Development Fund — Other

Members
Colombia

Germany

Mexico
Venezuela

Other contributors
Sweden

United States of America

Sub-total
Accrued interest

Total — SDF (Other)

Total SDF — December 31

1/ Net of lapses and cancellations

$919,442 $58,118  $861,324 #3®  $152,964 $445,922 100.00
- - - - - 2,529
$921,971 $58,118  $863,853 32838 $152,964  $448,451
$8,534 $ - $8,534 $8,214 $ - $319 1.6
18,715 - 18,715 18,593 - 122 0.6
8,815 - 8,815 6,564 - 2,251 11.0
52,795 - 52,795 34,449 621 17,727 86.6
88,859 - 88,859 67,820 621 20,419 99.8
5,351 - 5,351 5,319 - 31 0.2
22,833 - 22,833 22,833 - - -
28,184 - 28,184 28,152 - 31 100.0
117,043 - 117,043 95,972 621 20,450
- - - - 120
$117,163 - $117,163 $95,972 $62  $20,570

$1,039,254  $58,118  $981,136358,410 $153,585  $469,021

2/There were no overdue installments of princigalQ- $28)

3/ Relates to amounts disbursed and outstanding.
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES — SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND (OTHER)

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS ...continued

December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 2
2010
Loans % of
Total approved total
loans but not Signed  Principal Out- loans
Analysis by approved yet agree- repaid to Undis-  standing out-
Contributor effective ments bank bursed ? standing
Special Development Fund — Unified
Members/Contributors $845,335 $25,540 $819,795 ®OH  $146,126  $428,673 100.00
Accrued interest - - - - - 2,371
Total SDF — (Unified) $847,706 $25,540 $822,166  $XRD6 $146,126  $431,044
Special Development Fund — Other
Members
Colombia $8,533 $ - $8,533 $8,150 $ - $383 1.8
Germany 19,352 - 19,352 19,230 - 122 0.6
Mexico 8,815 - 8,815 6,433 - 2,382 11.2
Venezuela 52,795 - 52,795 33,389 996 18,410 86.3
89,495 - 89,495 67,202 996 21,297 99.9
Other contributors
Sweden 5,497 - 5,497 5,466 - 31 0.1
United States of America 22,833 - 22,833 22,833 - - -
28,330 - 28,330 28,299 - 31 100.0
Sub-total 117,825 - 117,825 95,501 996 21,328
Accrued interest - - - - 125
Total — SDF (Other) $117,950 - $117,950 $95,501 $99 $21,453
Total SDF — December 31 $965,656 $25,540  $940,116 3404497 $147,122  $452,497

1/ Net of lapses and cancellations

2/Includes overdue installments of principal amounto $28 (2009 - $254)

3/ Relates to amounts disbursed and outstanding.
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES — SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND (OTHER)

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS ...continued
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 2
2011
Loans Trans- Loans
out- lation out-
Currencies standing adjust- Disburse- Sub- Repay- standing
Receivable 2010 ment ments total ments 2011
(a) Special Development Fund - Unified
United States dollars $428,673 $ - $35,266 63®B9  $(18,017) $445,922
Accrued interest 2,371 - - - 2,529
Total — December 31 $431,044 $ - $35,266  $463,939  $(18,018448,451
(b) Special Development Fund - Other
United States dollars $22,328 % - $376 $21,704 $ (1,254) $20,450
Accrued interest 125 - - - - 120
Total — December 31 $21,453 $ - $376  $21,704 $(1,254) $20,570
Maturity structure of loans outstanding
January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 $23,178
January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013 21,090
January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 22,675
January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 25,185
January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016 25,848
January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2021 124,709
January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2026 102,302
January 1, 2027 to December 31, 2031 80,230
January 1, 2032 to December 31, 2042 43,804
Total $469,021

1/Relates to amounts disbursed and outstanding.

-14 -



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES — SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND (OTHER)

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS ...continued
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 2
2010
Loans Trans- Loans
out- lation out-
Currencies standing adjust- Disburse- Sub- Repay- standing
Receivable 2009 ment ments total ments 2010
(c) Special Development Fund - Unified
United States dollars $410,574 $ - $34,570 45§44  $(16,471) $428,673
Accrued interest 2,361 - - - - 2,371
Total — December 31 $412,935 $ - $34,570  $445,144  $(16,471431,044
(d) Special Development Fund - Other
United States dollars $22,119 $ - $180 $22,299 $ (971) $21,328
Accrued interest 129 - - - - 125
Total — December 31 $22,248 $ - $180 $22,299 $(971) $21,453
Maturity structure of loans outstanding
January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011 $21,719
January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 20,191
January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013 20,638
January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 22,111
January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 24,442
January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2020 119,102
January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2025 96,222
January 1, 2026 to December 31, 2030 79,293
January 1, 2031 to December 31, 2042 48,779

TOTAL $452,497

1/Relates to amounts disbursed and outstanding.
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

STATEMENT OF CONTRIBUTED RESOURCES
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 3
2011
Receivable
Approved from
but not Amounts members
Total yet Total notyet Amounts non-
approved  effective contribution made made negotiable
Contributors Y 2 agreed available available demand notes
Special Development Fund
— Unified
Members
Trinidad & Tobago $35,384 $- $35,384 $2,546 $32,838 $9,057
Bahamas 19,809 - 19,809 4,249 15,560 6,931
Barbados 19,805 - 19,805 - 19,805 4,249
Jamaica 33,204 - 33,204 2,546 30,658 5,728
Guyana 19,810 - 19,810 1,416 18,394 -
Antigua and Barbuda 2,257 605 1,652 - 1,652 32
Belize 5,134 - 5,134 349 4,785 1,595
Dominica 4,873 - 4,873 348 4,525 2,047
St. Kitts and Nevis 5,135 - 5,135 349 4,786 2,145
St. Lucia 5,134 - 5,134 348 4,786 1,595
St. Vincent & the Grenadines 5,146 - 5,146 348 8,79 1,797
Grenada 3,345 - 3,345 - 3,345 2,712
Montserrat 2,045 605 1,440 - 1,440 -
British Virgin Islands 2,045 - 2,045 151 1,894 -
Turks & Caicos Islands 2,045 605 1,440 - 1,440 -
Cayman Islands 1,945 605 1,340 - 1,340 -
Anguilla 2,045 - 2,045 151 1,894 1,051
Colombia 27,133 3,600 23,533 - 23,533 -
Venezuela 21,982 - 21,982 900 21,082 -
Canada 264,765 - 264,765 17,458 247,307 -
United Kingdom 214,350 - 214,350 17,457 196,893 683,
Germany 81,950 - 81,950 3,139 78,811 6,625
Italy 64,101 7,083 57,018 - 57,018 -
China 41,298 - 41,298 2,024 39,274 -
Haiti 1,560 - 1,560 227 1,333 -
Mexico 17,000 3,000 14,000 - 14,000 -
903,300 16,103 887,197 54,006 833,191 59,247
Other contributors
France 58,254 - 58,254 - 58,254 -
Netherlands 24,902 - 24,902 - 24,902 -
986,456 16,103 970,353 54,006 916,347 59,247
Technical assistance
allocation (320,950) - (320,950) - (320,950) -
Sub-total $665,506 $16,103 $649,403 $54,006 $595,397 $59,247
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

STATEMENT OF CONTRIBUTED RESOURCES... continued
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 3
2011
Receivable
from
members
Approved Amounts non-
Total but not yet Total notyet Amounts negotiable
approved effective contribution made made demand
Contributors v agreed available available notes
Sub-total b/fwd $665,506 $16,103 $649,403 $54,006 $595,397 $59,247
Special Development Fund —
Other
Members
Colombia 5,000 - 5,000 - 5,000 -
Germany”
Mexico ¥ 13,067 - 13,067 - 13,067 -
Venezuela 17,474 - 17,474 - 17,474 -
35,541 - 35,541 - 35,541 -
Other contributors
Sweden 3,769 - 3,769 - 3,769 -
United States of Americ& 2,210 - 2,210 - 2,210 -
5,979 - 5,979 - 5,979 -
Sub-total 41,520 - 41,520 - 41,520 -
Total — SDF $707,026 $16,103 $690,923 $54,006 $&BB, $59,247
Summary
Members 617,891 16,103 601,788 54,006 547,782 89,24
Other contributors 89,135 - 89,135 - 89,135 -
Total — SDF $707,026 $16,103 $690,923 $54,006 $BBB, $59,247

1/Net of repayments
2/Contributions not yet firmly pledged by Governrisen
3/Contributions with fixed repayment dates

4/Net of appropriation for Technical Assistance$2f266,000
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

STATEMENT OF CONTRIBUTED RESOURCES... continued

December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 3
2010
Receivable
Approved from
but not Amounts members
Total yet Total notyet Amounts non-
approved  effective contribution made made negotiable
Contributors v agreed available available demand notes
Special Development Fund
- Unified
Members
Trinidad & Tobago $35,384 $- $35,384 $3,564 $31,820 $9,057
Bahamas 19,809 - 19,809 4,249 15,560 6,931
Barbados 19,805 - 19,805 - 19,805 6,015
Jamaica 33,204 - 33,204 5,092 28,112 7,569
Guyana 22,642 - 22,642 5,665 16,977 -
Antigua and Barbuda 2,997 605 2,392 - 1,652 32
Belize 5,134 - 5,134 697 4,437 1,246
Dominica 5,228 - 5,228 1,051 4,177 1,350
St. Kitts and Nevis 5,134 - 5,134 697 4,437 1,797
St. Lucia 5,134 - 5,134 697 4,437 1,247
St. Vincent & the Grenadines 5,147 - 5,147 697 @,45 1,797
Grenada 3,345 - 3,345 - 3,345 2,712
Montserrat 2,045 605 1,440 - 1,440 -
British Virgin Islands 2,045 - 2,045 302 1,743 169
Turks & Caicos Islands 2,045 605 1,440 - 1,440 -
Cayman Islands 1,945 605 1,340 - 1,340 -
Anguilla 2,197 - 2,197 454 1,743 1,051
Colombia 27,133 3,600 23,533 - 23,533 -
Venezuela 21,982 - 21,982 1,800 20,182 -
Canada 264,302 - 264,302 34,915 229,387 -
United Kingdom 216,725 - 216,725 34,915 181,810 723,
Germany 83,928 - 83,928 9,417 74,511 8,223
Italy 64,101 7,083 57,018 - 57,018 -
China 41,298 - 41,298 4,049 37,249 -
Haiti 1,560 910 650 - 650 -
Mexico 20,000 3,000 17,000 3,000 14,000 -
913,529 17,013 896,516 111,261 785,255 62,917
Other contributors
France 58,254 - 58,254 - 58,254 -
Netherlands 24,902 - 24,902 - 24,902 -
996,685 17,013 979,672 111,261 868,411 62,917
Technical assistance
allocation (286,300) - (286,300) - (286,300) -
Sub-total $710,385 $17,013 $693,372 $111,261 $582,111 $62,917

-18 -



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

STATEMENT OF CONTRIBUTED RESOURCES... continued
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 3
2010
Receivable
from
members
Approved Amounts non-
Total but not yet Total notyet Amounts negotiable
approved effective contribution made made demand
Contributors v agreed available available notes
Sub-total b/fwd $710,385 $17,013 $693,372 $111,261 $582,111 $62,917
Special Development Fund —
Other
Members
Colombia 5,000 - 5,000 - 5,000 -
Germany”
Mexico ¥ 13,067 - 13,067 - 13,067 -
Venezuela 17,474 - 17,474 - 17,474 -
35,541 - 35,541 - 35,541 -
Other contributors
Sweden 3,873 - 3,873 - 3,873 -
United States of Americ& 3,227 - 3,227 - 3,227 -
7,100 - 7,100 - 7,100 -
Sub-total 42,641 - 42,641 - 42,641 -
Total — SDF $753,026 $17,013 $736,013 $111,261 $E2 $62,917
Summary
Members 662,770 17,013 645,757 111,261 534,496 182,9
Other contributors 90,256 - 90,256 - 90,256 -
Total — SDF $753,026 $17,013 $736,013 $111,261 $E2A $62,917

1/Net of repayments

2/Contributions not yet firmly pledged by Governrisen
3/Contributions with fixed repayment dates

4/Net of appropriation for Technical Assistance2f266,000
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

STATEMENT OF CONTRIBUTED RESOURCES. ...continued

December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 3
2011
Draw-
downs/
Appro-
Amounts Trans-  priations Amounts
made lation from made
available adjust- Capital Sub-  Repay- available
Currencies 2010 ment v total ments 2011
(a) Special Development Fund —
Unified
Canadian dollars $185 - $(185) $ - $ - $ -
Euros 8,552 (272) (1,652) 6,628 - 6,628
Pounds sterling 9,070 (27) 4,640 13,683 - 13,683
United States dollars 564,304 - 10,782 575,086 - 575,086
Total — December 31 $582,111 $(299) $13,585 $595,397 - $595.397
(b) Special Development Fund —
Other
Swedish kroners 3,874 (104) - 3,770 - 3,770
United States dollars 38,767 - - 38,767 (1,017) 37,750
Total — December 31 $42,641 $(104) - $42,537  $(1,017) $41,520

1/Net of conversion to the United States dollaradgnordance with the funding rules of the Unifigee8al Development Fund..

Maturity structure of repayable contributions outstanding*

January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012
January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013
January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014

$1

,047
577
586

TOTAL

$2,210

* Relates to SDF (O) contributions by Germany drelWnited States of America only.
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

STATEMENT OF CONTRIBUTED RESOURCES... continued
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

\ SCHEDULE 3
2010
Draw-
downs/
Appro-
Amounts Trans-  priations Amounts
made lation from made
available adjust- Capital Sub-  Repay- available
Currencies 2009 ment v total ments 2010
(c) Special Development Fund —
Unified
Canadian dollars $ 176 $9 3 - $185 % - $185
Euros 14,877 (1,064) (5,261) 8,552 - 8,552
Pounds sterling 7,056 (304) 2,318 9,070 - 9,070
United States dollars 534,468 - 29,836 564,304 - 564,304
Total — December 31 $556,577 $(1,359) $26,893 $582,111 - $582,111
(d) Special Development Fund —
Other
Swedish kroners $ 3,656 218 - 3,874 - 3,874
United States dollars 39,754 - - 39,754 (987) 38,767
Total — December 31 $43,410 $218 - $43,628 $(987) $42,641

1/ Net of conversion to the United States dollarsaooadance with the funding rules of the Unified 8peDevelopment Fun.

Maturity structure of repayable contributions outstanding*

January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011 $1,017
January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 1,047
January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013 577
January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 586
TOTAL $3,227

* Relates to SDF (O) contributions by Germany drelWnited States of America only.
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

STATEMENT OF ACCUMULATED NET INCOME

December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 4
2011
Brought Net Carried
forward income Appro- forward

Contributors 2010 2011 priations 2011
Special Development Fund — Unified $40,957 $875 $ - $41,832
Special Development Fund — Other
Members
Colombia $2,327 $50 $ - $2,377
Germany (674) (108) - (782)
Mexico 7,082 8 - 7,090
Venezuela 15,901 (6) (900) 14,995

24,636 (56) (900) 23,680
Other contributors
Sweden 6,876 702 (5,000) 2,578
United States of America 11,028 57 - 11,085

17,904 759 (5,000) 13,663

42,540 703 (5,900) 37,343
Total SDF $83,497 $1,578 $(5,900) $79,175
Summary
Members $65,593 $819 $(900) 65,512
Other contributors 17,904 759 (5,000) 13,663
Total SDF — December 31 $83,497 $1,578 $(5,900) 9375
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

STATEMENT OF CONTRIBUTED RESOURCES... continued
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 4
2010
Brought Net Carried
forward income Appro- forward
Contributors 2009 2009 priations 2010
Special Development Fund — Unified $38,266 $2,691 $ - $40,957
Special Development Fund — Other
Members
Colombia $2,322 $5 $- $2,327
Germany (612) (62) - (674)
Mexico 6,892 190 - 7,082
Venezuela 16,773 28 (900) 15,901
25,375 161 (900) 24,636
Other contributors
Sweden 6,528 348 - 6,876
United States of America 10,854 174 - 11,028
17,382 522 - 17,904
42,757 683 (900) 42,540
Total SDF $81,023 $3,374 $(900) $83,497
Summary
Members $63,641 $2,852 $(900) 65,593
Other contributors 17,382 522 - 17,904
Total SDF — December 31 $81,023 $3,374 $(900) 433,
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

A. Nature of operations and summary of significant acounting policies
Nature of operations

The Special Development Fund (SDF) was establighechrry out the special operations of the

Caribbean Development Bank (the Bank) by providiagources on concessional terms to assist
borrowing members primarily for poverty reductidgdesources are provided by contributions from

members and other contributors.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Due to the nature of the SDF, these financial statdés have been prepared for the specific purpose
of reflecting the sources and applications of mamigscriptions and contributions and other
development resources. These financial statemardsnot intended to be a presentation in
accordance with International Financial Reportitgn8ards. These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the accounting policigsned below.

Preparation of these financial statements requirasagement to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets anditie® and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeatsl the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reported period. Actual results colftedfrom these estimates.

Translation of currencies

The financial statements are expressed in UnitateSdollars solely for the purpose of summarizing
the SDF’s financial position and the results obiperations.

Assets and liabilities in currencies other thantethiStates dollars are translated into United State
dollars either at the par values established fosdicurrencies with the International Monetary Fund
or where no par values are maintained, at rateshwhave been determined by the Bank to be
appropriate for translation. In general, the raegletermined will be the approximate market rates
of exchange prevailing at the dates of the findrat@ements.

Income and expenses in currencies other than USitetes dollars are translated into United States
dollars at applicable rates of exchange on theséretion dates. Any gains or losses arising asutre

of differences in rates applied to income and egperand to assets and liabilities are shown as an
exchange gain or loss in the determination of medme for the year.

Investments

All investment securities are in a portfolio degitgd at fair value through profit or loss and régadr

at fair market value. Securities are initiallcognized at fair value (which excludes transaction
costs) and subsequently re-measured at fair valsedoon quoted market prices. All related realized
and unrealized gains and losses are included stment income. Interest earned whilst holding
securities is reported as interest income.
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

A. Summary of significant accounting policies..continued

Investments..continued

Regular-way purchases and sales of securitieseaogmnized at trade date, which is the date that the
Bank commits to purchase or sells the asset.

Loans

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finarasslets that have fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Aftetiahimeasurement, loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortized cost usingfawtiee interest rate method less any impairment.

Interest income is recognized by applying the eiffecinterest rate method, except for short-term

receivables when the recognition of interest wdnddmmaterial.

All loans by the Fund are made either from curreseivailable from members’ subscriptions or from
currencies borrowed and the principal amounts epayable to the Fund in the currencies lent. The
balances outstanding on loans to members and #geincies are secured by guarantees of the
Governments of the member country in which the $cae made.

The Fund is one of very few lenders of developnaed structural adjustment loans to Caribbean
countries. There is no secondary market for dgretnt loans nor does the Fund intend to sell these
loans. As a result, the use of market data toverat the fair value of loans will not yield any
meaningful results.

The Fund does not make provisions for losses omiag loans as any loss that may occur is taken
in profit and loss for that year.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flowsh ead cash equivalents comprise cash in banks
and other depositories and time deposits withtless 90 days maturity from the date of acquisition.

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash cash equivalents comprise the following
balances with less than 3 months maturity fromddwe of acquisition:

SDF Unified SDF Other
2011 2010 2011 2010
Due from banks $ 42 $ 7,063 $16,007  $5,396
Time deposits 33,627 50,597 7,541 5,863
Cash and cash equivalents $33,66957,660 $23,548 $11,259
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

A. Summary of significant accounting policies..continued
Technical assistance and grants

Technical assistance and grants for capital prejeztborrowing member countries are provided
either from grants received from contributors amirother resources specifically allocated for this
purpose. The contributions from donors are indluithethe financial statements from the date of the
contribution agreement. Technical assistance ogmized when the project is approved and
becomes effective.

Interest income and charges on contributions

Interest income and charges on contributions azegrézed in the statement of income and total
comprehensive income for all interest-bearing umants using the effective interest rate method
based on the actual purchase price.

The effective interest rate is the rate that eyadidcounts estimated future cash payments orpescei
through the expected life of the financial instrumner, when appropriate, a shorter period to the ne
carrying amount of the financial asset or finanbaility.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses incurred by the Bank whdahnot be directly charged to individual funds
are allocated between the Ordinary Capital Ressurtee Other Special Funds and the Special
Development Fund in accordance with a method otation notified to the Board of Directors.

B. Investments

As part of its overall portfolio management strgtethe Bank invests in Government, agency,
supranational and bank obligations, including tidegosits and euro commercial paper. The Bank
limits its activities of investing in securities well established dealers and counterparties ngpetin
minimum credit rating standards set by the Bank.

The annualized rate of return on the average imasts held during the year, including realized and
unrealized gains and losses was 1.47% (2010 — .24 realized gain on investments traded
during 2011 totalled $968 (2010 — $42) while neteatized gains totalled $654 (2010 — loss of
$1,270).
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

C. Funds

In accordance with the Agreement establishing taekBthe Agreement), Special Funds Resources
comprise the Special Development Fund and Otheci@péunds established or administered by the
Bank, including technical assistance and other tgresources contributed on a non-reimbursable
basis. The Special Development Fund was estalligheeceive contributions or loans which may
be used to make or guarantee loans of high deveoghpriority, with longer maturities, longer
deferred commencement of repayment and lower stteates than those determined by the Bank for
its Ordinary Operations. As a result of Rules addpby the Bank in May 1983 for the Special
Development Fund, contributions to the Special Dmment Fund currently comprise funds made
available to the Bank under the rules applicabl¢htoold Special Development Fund (referred to
herein as “Other”) and shown separately from fumdsle available to the Bank from the Unified
SDF (referred to herein as “Unified”).

Details of contributions and loan resources to 8pecial Development Fund are stated at the
equivalent in thousands of United States dollareresuch contributions and loans have been made
in currencies other than United States dollarsaards follows:

() Special Development Fund — Unified
2011 2010

Contributions (as per Schedule 3) $595,397 $582,111

All contributions to the Special Development Funtnified are interest-free with no date for
repayment.

Effective October 27, 2000, France ceased to bembar of the Bank, but under the Rules of
the Special Development Fund, its contributionsreme-reimbursable.

(i) Special Development Fund - Other
2011 2010

Colombia $5,000 $5,000

The contribution is interest-free and was not repds before 2000. The agreement with the
contributor provides that not less than 5% or nthea 10% of the contribution may be used for
technical assistance. To date $39,000 (2009 0889 has been incurred on technical assistance
and has been charged against the income from thghaation.
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

C. Funds...continued
(i) Special Development Fund — Othet.continued

The contributions consist of two loans which aréjsct to interest at the rate of 2% on the
amounts drawn and a commitment fee of 0.25% penranon the amounts undrawn. The first
contribution was repaid by end of July 2005, anel ¢hcond contribution is repayable over the
period 1993 to 2012.

2011 2010

Mexico
First contribution $10,000 $7,000
Less technical assistance (9,508) (2,266)
492 4,734
Second contribution 12,000 5,000
Third contribution (10,282) 3,333
$1,718 $13,067
Technical assistance resources $ 2210 $ 2,266

The contributions are interest-free and were nbjesii to call before 2009.

2011 2010

Venezuela
First contribution $10,000 $10,000
Less technical assistance (176) (176)
9,824 9,824
Second contribution 7,650 7,650
$17,474 $17,474

The contributions are interest-free and were ndijest to calls before 1999 and 2006
respectively. The agreement with the contribut@avles that up to 10% of the first contribution
may be used to finance technical assistance obaie of contingent recovery.
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

C. Funds...continued

(i) Special Development Fund — Other.continued

2011 2010

Sweden $3,769 $3,873

The contribution is interest-free with no definitate for repayment.

2011 2010
United States of America
First contribution $10,000 $10,000
Less repayments (9,508) (9,031)
492 969
Second contribution 12,000 12,000
Less repayments (10,282) (9,742)
1,718 2,258
$2,210 $3,227

The contributions are subject to interest at the o& 2% per annum on the amounts outstanding
for the first ten years after first disbursemend #grereafter at the rate of 3% per annum. The firs
contribution is repayable over the period 1982 @12 and the second contribution over the
period 1984 to 2014.

D. Accumulated net income and net income for the year
In accordance with the rules of the Special Devalept Fund, the accumulated net income and net

income for the current year form part of the cdnited resources of the fund and are not available f
allocation by the Board of Governors.
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

E. Technical assistance and grant resources

In accordance with paragraph 4.9.2 of the Rules thwr Special Development Fund,
allocations/appropriations of income and capitaihef Fund may be made for the purpose of
the Bank's technical assistance and grant opegatiofhe movements (expressed in
thousands of United States dollars) during thesreaded December 31, 2011 and 2010 were
as follows:

Balance at January 1, 2010 $67,375
Allocations for the year 23,274
Expenditure for the year (12,078)
Balance at December 31, 2010 78,571
Allocations for the year 23,135
Expenditure for the year (14,309)
Balance at December 31, 2011 $87,397
F. Loans

The average interest rate earned on loans outstamdis 2.32% (2010 -2.30 %). There were
no impaired loans at December 31, 2011 and 2010.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Governors
Caribbean Development Bank

We have audited the accompanying special purpose financial staterhém<Other Special Fundsof the
Caribbean Development Bank(the "Bank") for the year ended December 31, 2010, which gsenthe
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2010 anththensnt of income and accumulated income
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accoumtatigies and other explanatory
information. The special purpose financial statements have beeargutem the basis set out in Note A.

Management's responsibility for the special purpose final@tatements

Management is responsible for the preparation and presentatibasef special purpose financial statements
on the basis described in Note A. This responsibility ohetudesigning, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and presentatigpeaial purpose financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ersdecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonablecirctirastances.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these apgeirpose financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Internationatl&tds on Auditing. International Standards
on Auditing require that we comply with ethical requiremestsl plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the special purpose financial statmmérs of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain auditenwe about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the'swulifgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the special purposecfadatatements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intermabl relevant to the entity's preparation and
presentation of the special purpose financial statements intordesign audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expigsainopinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the apjatgmess of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates, if any, made by managememt] as evaluating the overall
presentation of the special purpose financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficieraprdpriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying special purpose financiarstaits have been prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with the basis set out in Note A.

Chartered Accountants
March 7, 2012
Bridgetown, Barbados



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As of December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

Assets
Cash and time deposits — Note A
Investments at fair value through profit and IdSshiedule 1)
Loans (Schedule 2)

Receivables — other
Accounts receivable — Note F

Total assets
Liabilities and Funds
Liabilities

Accounts payable including interfund payables —a\Bt
Accrued charges on contributions

Funds
Contributed resources (Schedule 3)
Contributions
Less amounts not yet made available

Amounts made available
Accumulated net income (Schedule 4)
Technical assistance and other grant resourcegd8lehb)

Total liabilities and funds

The accompanying notes form an integral part e§¢hfinancial statements.

2011 2010
$7,575 $11,124
65,809 72,418

125,083 118,010
69,309 63,607
$267,776  $265,159
$9,049 $8,843
226 241
9,275 9,084
79,541 78,107
79,541 78,107
48,903 48,392
128,444 126,499
130,057 129,576
$267,776  $265,159




CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

2011 2010
Income
From loans $2,555 $2,437
From investments and cash balances 259 4,201
2,814 6,638
Expenses
Administrative expenses 1,459 1,652
Charges on contributions 939 962
Exchange (95) 78
Total expenses 2,303 2,692
Net income and total comprehensive income for thesar $511 $3,946
Accumulated net income and total comprehensive inoae
Accumulated net income and total comprehensive inoee — beginning
of year $48,392  $44,446
Net income and total comprehensive income for da'y 511 3,946

Accumulated net income and total comprehensive inooe — end of year

The accompanying notes form an integral part adeéHeancial statements.

$48,903  $48,392




CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

2011 2010
Operating activities
Netincome for the year $511 $3,946
Adjustments for non-cash items
Unrealized gain on trading portfolio (304) (1,611)
Interest income (2,814) (6,638)
Interest expense 939 962
Disbursements on loans (11,549) (14,605)
Principal repayment on loans 4,311 3,480
Technical assistance disbursements (11,413) (16,767)
Net cash used in lending activities (20,830) (35,179)
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable (5,702) (4,387)
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable 206 (13,107)
Total adjustments (5,496) (17,494)
Interest received 2,819 6,742
Interest paid (954) (984)
Net decrease in debt securities at fair value through
profit or loss 6,863 5,512
Net cast(used in)/provided by operating activities (17,087) (37,457)
Financing activities
Contributions:
Increase in contributions for loans - -
Repayments (3,126) (3,224)
Technical assistance contributions 11,894 35,921
Net cash provided by/(used in)financing activ 13,692 32,697
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equis (3,395) (4,760)
Net foreign exchange differer (154) (108)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 11,124 15,992
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $7,575 $11,124

The accompanying notes form an integral part adeéHenancial statements.




CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF INVESTMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 1
2011 2010
Market Market

value value

Financial assets at fair value through profit or Iss
Government and Agency obligations $23,879 $29,122
Supranationals 7,858 8,743
Euro Commercial Paper 4,667 2,822
Mutual Funds 8,003 7,705
Managed Funds 10,922 11,428
Available for sale 55,329 59,820
Equity investments 10,301 12,369
Sub-total 65,630 72,189
Accrued interest 179 229
Total $65,809 $72,418

Residual Term to Contractual Maturity

2011 2010
One month to three months $6,199 $26,579
From three months to one year 4,799 6,716
From one year to five years 20,397 25,655
From five years to ten years 34,434 13,468
Total' $65,809 $72,418




CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 2
2011
% of
total
Un- loans

Member countries Total  committed Signed  Principal Out-  out-
in which loans loans loans agree- repaidto  Undis- standing stand
have been made u ments bank  bursed 21 -ing
Anguilla 500 - 500 394 - 106 0.1
Antigua and Barbuda 8,500 - 8,500 3,242 478 4,780 3.8
Barbados 26,046 - 26,046 17,965 730 7,351 5.9
Belize 9,536 - 9,536 9,536 - - -
British Virgin Islands 1,934 - 1,934 1,934 - - -
Cayman Islands 3,213 - 3,213 3,213 - - -
Dominica 35,266 - 35,266 15,451 - 19,815 15.9
Grenada 30,748 - 30,748 7,270 285 23,193 18.7
Guyana 20,731 - 20,731 16,517 - 4,214 3.4
Jamaica 68,963 - 68,963 37,702 - 31,261 25.1
Montserrat 1,243 - 1,243 1,243 - - -
St. Kitts and Nevis 8,524 - 8,524 4,747 95 3,682 3.0
St. Lucia 38,349 - 38,349 15,371 3,296 19,682 15.8
St. Vincent and the
Grenadines 21,789 - 21,789 12,922 119 8,748 7.0
Trinidad and Tobago 3,383 - 3,383 2,147 - 1,236 1.0
Regional 2,266 - 2,266 1,905 37 324 0.3
Sub-total 280,991 - 280,991 151,559 5,040 124,392 100.0
Accrued interedt - - - - - 691
Total — December 31 $281,682 - $281,682 $151,559 ,086 $125,083

1/ Net of lapses and cancellations

2/There are no overdue installments of principdd@tember, 2010 (2009 - Nil)

3/ Relates amounts disbursed and outstanding




CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS

December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 2
2010
% of
total
_ Total un- _ o loans

Member countries loans  committe Signed  Principal Out-  out-
in which loans approved d loans agree- repaidto  Undis- standing stand
have been made u ments bank  bursed 21 -ing
Anguilla 500 - 500 369 - 131 0.1
Antigua and Barbuda 8,535 - 8,535 3,016 848 4,671 4.0
Barbados 26,091 - 26,091 17,562 1,285 7,244 6.2
Belize 9,648 - 9,648 9,648 - - -
British Virgin Islands 1,942 - 1,942 1,942 - - -
Cayman Islands 3,183 - 3,183 3,183 - - -
Dominica 35,302 - 35,302 14,534 7 20,761 17.7
Grenada 30,808 - 30,808 6,769 524 23,515 20.0
Guyana 20,763 - 20,763 16,291 - 4,472 3.8
Jamaica 69,042 - 69,042 37,640 10,000 21,402 18.2
Montserrat 1,252 - 1,252 1,252 - - -
St. Kitts and Nevis 8,597 - 8,597 4,558 95 3,944 3.4
St. Lucia 38,419 - 38,419 14,650 3,682 20,187 17.2
St. Vincent and the
Grenadines 21,854 - 21,854 12,478 211 9,165 7.8
Trinidad and Tobago 3,500 - 3,500 2,112 - 1,388 1.2
Regional 2,266 - 2,266 1,745 37 484 0.4
Sub-total 281,702 - 281,702 147,749 16,589 117,364 100.0
Accrued interest - - - - - 646
Total — December 31 $282,348 - $282,348  $147,749 6,589  $118,010

1/ Net of lapses and cancellations

2/There are no overdue installments of principdd@tember, 2010 (2009 - Nil)

3/ Relates amounts disbursed and outstanding



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS ...continued

December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 2
2011
% of
total
un- Signed  Principal Out- loans
Total  committed agree- repaid to Undis-  standing out-
Analysis by Special Fund Loans loans ments Bank bursed " standing
Members
Trinidad and Tobago 1,343 - 1,343 1,340 - 3
Other contributors
Caribbean Development
Bank 76,050 - 76,050 14,484 3,543 58,022
Nigeria 9,635 - 9,635 5,074 - 4,562 3.7
United States of America 93,008 - 93,008 92,901 - 06 1 0.1
Inter-American Development
Bank 58,107 - 58,107 17,317 1,083 39,707
European Union 10,595 - 10,595 7,677 37 2,881
International Development
Association 32,252 - 32,252 12,766 377 19,111
Sub-total 280,990 - 280,990 151,559 5,040 124,392 00.L
Accrued interedt - - - - - 691
Total — December 31 $281,682 - $281,682 $151,559 ,048 $125,083

1/ Net of lapses and cancellations

2/ There are no overdue installments of princip&@cember 31, 2010 (2009 — nil).

3/ Relates amounts disbursed and outstanding

46.6

31.9



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS ...continued

December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 2
2010
% of
total
Un- Signed  Principal Out- loans
Total  committed agree- repaid to Undis- standing out-
Analysis by Special Fund Loans loans ments Bank  bursed " standing
Members
Trinidad and Tobago 1,307 - 1,307 1,304 - 3 -
Other contributors
Caribbean Development Bank 76,270 - 76,270 13,2874,65b 48,328 41.2
Nigeria 9,635 - 9,635 4,665 - 4,970 4.2
United States of America 93,007 - 93,007 92,876 - 311 0.1
Inter-American Development
Bank 58,097 - 58,097 16,145 1,520 40,432 34.4
European Union 10,957 - 10,957 7,685 37 3,235 2.8
International Development
Association 32,429 - 32,429 11,787 377 3,235 17.3
Sub-total 281,702 - 281,702 147,749 16,589 117,364 100.0
Accrued interest - - - - - 646
Total — December 31 $282,348 - $282,348  $147,749 6,530 $118,010

1/ Net of lapses and cancellations

2/There are no overdue installments of principdbetember, 2010 (2009 - Nil)

3/ Relates amounts disbursed and outstanding



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS ...continued
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 2
2011
Loans Trans- Provision Loans
out- lation for out-
standing adjust-  Disburse- Sub- Repay- losses  standing
Currencies receivable 2010 ment ments total ments 2011
Euros $ 3,235 $(107) $ - $3,128 $ (247) $2,881
Special drawing rights 16,527 (103) - 16,424 (854) - 15,570
United States dollars 97,602 - 11,549 109,151 (3,210) - 105,941
Sub-total 117,364 (210) 11,549 128,703 (4,311) - 124,392
Accrued interest 646 - - - - - 691
Total — December 31 $118,010 $(210) $11,549 $128,39%(4,311) - $125,083
Maturity structure of loans outstanding
January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 $4,622
January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013 3,936
January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 5,268
January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 6,338
January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016 6,512
January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2021 33,773
January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2026 31,538
January 1, 2027 to December 31, 2031 21,491
January 1, 2032 to December 31, 2046 11,605
Total _$125,083

1/ Relates amounts disbursed and outstanding
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS ...continued
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 2
2010
Loans Trans- Loans
out- lation Provision out-
standing adjust-  Disburse- Sub- Repay- for standing
Currencies receivable 2009 ment ments total ments Losses 2010
Euros $ 3,756 $(268) $ - $3,488 $ (253) $3,235
Special drawing rights 17,548 (247) - 17,301 (774) - 16,527
United States dollars 85,450 - 14,605 100,055 (2,453) - 97,602
Sub-total 106,754 (515) 14,605 120,844 (3,480) - 117,364
Accrued interest 578 - . . - . 646
Total — December 31 $107,332 $(515) $14,605 $120,49%(3,480) - $118,010
Maturity structure of loans outstanding

January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011 $4,345

January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 3,837

January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013 3,872

January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 4,827

January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2019 30,239

January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2024 30,342

January 1, 2025 to December 31, 2029 23,036

January 1, 2030 to December 31, 2034 14,270

January 1, 2035 to December 31, 2039 1,844

January 1, 2040 to December 31, 2046 1,398

$118,010

1/ Relates amounts disbursed and outstanding
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CONTRIBUTIONS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 3

2011
Contributions

Amounts not Amounts
yet made made

Contributors Totall/ available available
Members
Canadd’ $6,959 $ - $6,959
Other contributors
Inter-American Development Bartk 41,053 - 41,053
European Investment Bark 1,293 - 1,293
United States of America 5,416 - 5,416
European Union 4,232 - 4,232
International Development Association 20,588 - 20,588
72,582 - 72,582
Total — December 31 $79,541 $ - $79,541

1/Net of cancellations and repayments

Maturity structure of repayable contributions outstanding

January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 $ 3,290
January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013 3,322
January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 2,930
January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 2,850
January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016 3,100
January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2021 17,007
January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2026 12,374
January 1, 2027 to December 31, 2031 11,168
January 1, 2032 to December 31, 2046 23,500
Total $79,541
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CONTRIBUTIONS

December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

2010
Amounts not  Amounts
Total yet made made
Contributors 1 available  available
Members
Canadd’ $2,006 $ - $2,006
Other contributors
Inter-American Development Bartk 41,752 - 41,752
European Investment Bark 1,338 - 1,338
United States of America 6,552 - 6,552
European Union 4,761 - 4,761
International Development Association 21,698 - 21,698
76,101 - 76,101
Total — December 31 $78,107 $- $78,107
1/Net of cancellations and repayments
Maturity structure of repayable contributions outstanding
January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011 3,145
January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 3,307
January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013 3,340
January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2018 17,075
January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2023 14,113
January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2028 12,171
January 1, 2028 to December 31, 2033 10,003
January 1, 2033 to December 31, 2045 14,953
Total $78,107
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CONTRIBUTIONS ...continued
December 31, 2011
(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)
SCHEDULE 3
2011
Draw-
Contri- downs/ Contri-
butions Trans- Appro- butions
made lation priations made
Currencies available adjust- from Sub- Repay- available
repayable 2010 ment Capital total ments 2011
Canadian dollars $2,237 $(53) $ - $2,184 $ (50) $2,134
Euros 6,102 (205) - 5,897 (371) 5,526
Japanese yen 203 10 - 213 47 166
Pounds sterling 221 (1) - 220 (49) 171
Special Drawing Rights 18,004 (113) - 17,891 (803) 17,088
Swedish kroners 91 (2) - 89 (20) 69
United States dollars 51,249 - 4,924 56,173 (1,786) 54,387
Total — December 31 $78,107 $(364) $4,924 $82,667 $(3,126) $79,541
2010
Draw-
Contri- downs/ Contri-
butions Trans- Appro- butions
made lation priations made
Currencies available adjust- from Sub- Repay- available
repayable 2009 ment Capital total ments 2010
Canadian dollars $2,171 $117 $ - $2,288 $ (51) $2,237
Euros 6,980 (498) - 6,482 (380) 6,102
Japanese yen 218 30 - 248 (45) 203
Pounds sterling 282 (12) - 270 (49) 221
Special Drawing Rights 18,992 (266) - 18,726 (722) 18,004
Swedish kroners 105 6 - 111 (20) 91
United States dollars 53,206 - - 53,206 (1,957) 51,249
Total — December 31 $81,954 $(623) $ - $81,331 (3,%24) $78,107
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF ACCUMULATED INCOME

December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 4

2011

Accumulated Net Income

Brought Net Carried

forward income/(Loss) Appro- forward
Contributors 2010 2011  priations 2011
General Funds $37,073 765 $ $37,838
European Investment Bank (677) (207) - (784)
European Union 2,532 10 - 2,542
Inter-American Development Bank 552 (40) - 482
International Development Association 229 (7 - 222
Nigeria 6,119 5 6,124
United States of America 2,594 (115) 2,479
Total - December 31 $48,392 511 - $48,903

2010
Accumulated Net Income

Brought Net Carried

forward Income/(Loss) Appro- forward
Contributors 2009 2010  priations 2010
General Funds $21,177 4,126 $11,770 $37,073
European Investment Bank (599) (78) - (677)
European Union 2,494 37 - 2,531
Inter-American Development Bank 552 (30) - 522
International Development Association 240 (12) - 229
Nigeria 6,860 39 (780) 6,119
United States of America 13,722 (137) (10,990) 2,595
Total — December 31 $44,446 3,946 - $48,392
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE AND OTHER GRANT R ESOURCES

December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 5
2011
Contributors
Amounts
not yet Amounts Net
Total made made Amounts Amounts
Contributors v available available utilized available
Members
Canada $39,897 $- $39,897 $33,833 $6,064
United Kingdom 18,658 - 18,658 6,333 12,325
Italy 522 - 522 252 270
59,077 - 59,077 40,418 18,659
Other contributors
Caribbean Development Bank 211,560 211,560 101,67 109,889
United States of America 1,407 1,407 1,407
Inter-American Development Bank 2,876 2,876 2,479 397
China 677 - 677 198 479
Venezuela 587 - 587 - 587
Nigeria 193 - 193 147 46
Sub-total 217,300 - 217,300 105,902 111,398
Total — December 31 $276,377 $- $276,377 $146,32013®%057
Summary
Basic Needs Trust Fund $138,250 $ $138,250 ,4%B0 $67,772
Other resources 138,127 - 138,127 75,842 62,285
Total — December 31 $276,377 $ - $276,377 $146,320 $130,057

1/Net of cancellation and resources fully utilize®l expended in non-reimbursable operations.

-16-



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE AND OTHER GRANT R ESOURCES

December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

SCHEDULE 5
2010
Contributors
Amounts
not yet Amounts Net
Total made made Amounts Amounts
Contributors v available available utilized available
Members
Canada $40,067 $139 $39,928 $30,589 $9,339
United Kingdom 18,494 - 18,494 4,459 14,035
Italy 518 - 518 252 266
59,079 139 58,940 35,300 23,640
Other contributors
Caribbean Development Bank 200,064 - 200,064 95,51804,546
United States of America 1,407 - 1,407 1,405 2
Inter-American Development Bank 2,618 - 2,618 2,339 279
China 676 - 676 198 478
Venezuela 585 - 585 - 585
Nigeria 193 - 193 147 46
Sub-total 205,543 - 205,543 99,607 105,936
Total — December 31 $264,622 $139 $264,483 $134,908129,576
Summary
Basic Needs Trust Fund $126,750 $ - $126,750 ,989@4  $61,828
Other resources 137,872 139 137,733 69,985 67,748
Total — December 31 $264,622 $139 $264,483 $134,908129,576
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

NOTES TO SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

A. Nature of operations and summary of significant acounting policies
Nature of operations

The Other Special Funds (OSF) were establishedny out the special operations of the Caribbean
Development Bank (the “Bank”) by providing resowwam concessional terms to assist borrowing
members primarily for poverty reduction. Resouraes provided by contributions from members
and other contributors.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Due to the nature of the OSF, these financial stetgs have been prepared for the specific purpose
of reflecting the sources and applications of mamiigscriptions and contributions and other

development resources. These financial statemargsnot intended to be a presentation in

accordance with International Financial Reportingin8ards. These special purpose financial

statements have been prepared in accordance witicttounting policies outlined below.

Preparation of these special purpose financiagstants requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts adtasmnd liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the finansiatements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reported period. Actual resaltld differ from these estimates.

Translation of currencies

The financial statements are expressed in UnitattSdollars solely for the purpose of summarising
the OSF's financial position and the results objerations.

Assets and liabilities in currencies other thantéthiStates dollars are translated into United State
dollars either at the par values established fosdicurrencies with the International Monetary Fund
or where no par values are maintained, at rateshwhave been determined by the Bank to be
appropriate for translation. In general, the raesletermined will be the approximate market rates
of exchange prevailing at the date of the finanstatements.

Income and expenses in currencies other than USitetes dollars are translated into United States
dollars at applicable rates of exchange on theséetion dates. This practice approximates the
application of average rates in effect during tleary Any gains or losses arising as a result of
differences in rates applied to income and expeasesto assets and liabilities are shown as an
exchange gain or loss in the determination of medme for the year.
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

NOTES TO SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

A. Summary of significant accounting policies..continued
Investments

Investment securities held in a portfolio are desigd at fair value through profit or loss and

reported at fair market value. Securities areiaiiyt recognized at fair value (which excludes

transaction costs) and subsequently re-measuréalratalue based on quoted market prices. All
related realized and unrealized gains and lossemeuded in investment income in the statement of
income. Interest earned whilst holding tradingusiies is reported as interest income.

Equity investments are categorized as availabledt® instruments which are intended to be held for
an indefinite period of time. Available for salesiruments are recognized at fair value which is the
cash consideration including any transaction casts, measured subsequently at book value with
income or losses being recognized in the statenféantome and accumulated net income.

The investment is assessed for impairment basdtieonet book value of the underlying asset and
adjusted if the carrying value is less than thedmuproportionate share of net assets. Amounts
distributed to the Fund are recorded as a returimagstment until such investments are written off
and are subsequently recorded as income.

Loans

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finaresslets that have fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Aftetiahimeasurement, loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortized cost usingfiniee interest rate method less any impairment.
Interest income is recognized by applying the ¢iffednterest rate, except for short-term receigabl
when the recognition of interest would be immateria

All loans by the Fund are made either from curreseivailable from members’ subscriptions or from

currencies borrowed and the principal amounts asalpe to the Fund in the currencies lent. The

balances outstanding on loans to members and #ggincies are secured by guarantees of the
Governments of the member countries in which thescare made.

The Fund is one of very few lenders of developnaerd structural adjustment loans to Caribbean
countries. There is no secondary market for dgaémt loans nor does the Fund intend to sell these
loans. As a result, the use of market data toverat the fair value of loans will not yield any
meaningful results.

The OSF does not make provisions for losses onifegbéoans as any loss that may occur is taken in
profit and loss for that year.
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF LOANS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

A. Summary of significant accounting policies..continued
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cadhcash equivalents comprise cash in banks and
other depositories and time deposits with less 8tadays maturity from the date of acquisition.

2011 2010
Due from banks $3,341  $7,123
Time deposits 4,234 4,001
Cash and cash equivalents $7,575 $11,124

Technical assistance and grants

Technical assistance and grants for capital prejeztborrowing member countries are provided

either from non-reimbursable grants received framticbutors or from other resources specifically

allocated for this purpose. The contributions frdonors are included in the financial statements
from the date of the contribution agreement. Taairassistance is recognized when the project is
approved and becomes effective.

Interest income and charges on contributions

Interest income and charges on contributions amegrdzed in the statement of income and
accumulated income for all interest-bearing ins&nta using the effective interest rate method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that eyatifcounts estimated future cash payments orptcei
through the expected life of the financial instrumner, when appropriate, a shorter period to the ne
carrying amount of the financial asset or finanbaility.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses incurred by the Bank whdahnot be directly charged to individual funds

are allocated between the Ordinary Capital Ressurtee Other Special Funds and the Special
Development Fund in accordance with a method otation notified to the Board of Directors.
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE AND GRANT RESOURC ES
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

B.

Investments

As part of its overall portfolio management strgtethe Fund invests in Government agency,
supranational and bank obligations, including tideposits. The Fund limits its activities of
investing in securities to well established deaberd counterparties meeting minimum credit rating
standards set by the Fund.

The annualized rate of return on the average imasts held during the year, including realized and
unrealized gains and losses was 2.35% (2010 — 2.3B%t realized gain on investments amounted
to $167 (2010 — loss of $250), while net unrealitbsdes amounted to $304 (2010 — gain of $1,611).

. Funds

In accordance with the Agreement establishing thekBthe Agreement), Special Funds Resources
comprise the Special Development Fund and Otheci@péunds established or administered by the
Bank, including technical assistance and other tgrasources contributed on a non-reimbursable
basis. For the purposes of these financial stateanéhe Other Special Funds have been presented
separately from the Special Development Fund. Ttker Special Funds are established in
accordance with agreements between the Bank andatfteibutors and are for specific types of
projects as agreed between the Bank and the coturib In accordance with the Agreement, each
Special Fund, its resources and accounts are keipelg separate from other Special Funds, their
resources and accounts.

For the purpose of presentation in these finarstetements, the financial statements of each of the
Other Special Funds have been aggregated.

Technical assistance and other grant resourcasdiecesources for the Basic Needs Trust Fund and
other resources established for specific purposeegermined between the Bank and contributors.
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF LOANS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

C. Funds...continued

Details of contributions, loans and technical dasise resources of the Other Special Funds aetistat
at the equivalent in thousands of United Statekadolvhere such contributions, loans and technical
assistance grants have been made in currenciestibimeUnited States dollars and are as follows:

2011 2010
Canada
Agriculturaf $6,959 $2,006
Technical assistance resources 39,897 39,928
Italy
Technical assistance resources $522 $519
China
Technical assistance resources 677 676
Venezuela
Technical assistance resources 587 585
Nigeria
Technical assistance resources $ 193 $ 193
United Kingdom
Technical assistance resources $18,658 $18,494
Inter-American Development Bank
975/SF-RG 14,211 14,211
Less repayments (3,946) (3,527)
10,265 10,684
Second Global Loan 5,074 5,067
Less repayments (4,209) (4,000)
865 1,067
1108/SF-RG Global Credit 20,000 20,000
1637/SF-RG Credit 9,923 10,000
$41,053 $41,751
Technical assistance resources $2,876 $2,618

2 The contributions are interest-free with no daterépayment
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE AND GRANT RESOURC ES
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

C. Funds...continued

The first global loan was subject to interest &t thte of 1% per annum until 1983 and thereafter at
2% per annum and was repayable during the peri@b 18 2003. The second global loan was
subject to interest at the rate of 1% per annuni @884 and thereafter at 2% per annum and is
repayable during the period 1995 to 2015.

The pre-investment loan was subject to interesthatrate of 1% per annum up to 1982 and
subsequently at 2% per annum and was repaid dtmengeriod 1983 to 2002.

Loan 975/SF-RG is subject to interest at the ratE@ per annum until 2006 and thereafter at 2% per
annum and is repayable during the period 2003 8620

Global Credit 1108/SF-RG is subject to interesthat rate of 1% for the first ten years and 2%
thereafter and is repayable during the period 2012D42.

Grenada Reconstruction 1637/SF-RG is subject &vést at the rate of 1% per annum until 2015 and
thereafter at 2% per annum and is repayable dtinegeriod 2016 to 2045.

The loans are subject to a credit fee of 0.5% peua on any undrawn balance.

2011 2010

European Investment Bank

Global loan 1l - B $1,293 $1,338

Repayable in full in a single instalment on Septengd, 2016.

2010 2010 Due dates

United States of America
Contributions

Agricultural $7,052  $7,052 1988-2018
Less repayments (4,973) (4,687)
2,079 2,642

-23-



CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF LOANS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

C.

Funds...continued

2011 2010 Due dates

United States of America..continued

Employment Investment Promotion 6,732 6,732 1990-2000
Less repayments (4,209) (3,952)
2,523 2,780
Housing 8,400 8,400 1983-2012
Less repayments (7,586) (7,197)
814 1,203
Regional Agri-business Development 6,299 6,299 1991-2021
Less repayments (6,299) (6,095)
- 204

$5,416  $6,552

Technical assistance resources $1,407 $1,407

All contributions are subject to interest at theeraf 2% per annum on the amount outstanding #®r th
first ten years after first disbursement and thiteeaat the rate of 3% per annum.

2011 2010
European Union
First contribution $7,566 $7,825
Less repayments (4,788) (4,680)
2,778 3,145
Second Contribution 3,207 3,317
Less repayments (2,753) (1,701)
1,454 1,616

$4,232  $4,761

The contributions are subject to interest at the & 1% per annum. The first contribution is
repayable during the period 1992 to 2021 and tleerse contribution is repayable over the period

1994 to 2024
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE AND GRANT RESOURC ES
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

C. Funds...continued

International Development Association

2011 2010 Due dates
Credit No. 960/CRG $6,480 $6,480 1990-2029
Less repayments 2,981  $3,499 2,786  $3,694
Credit No. 37/CRG (EEC) 906 930
Less repayments 906 - 930 -
Credit No. 1364/CRG 8,302 8,355
Less repayments 2,947 5,355 2,715 5,640 1993-2033
Credit No. 1785/CRG 7,091 7,136
Less repayments 1,666 5,425 1,463 5,673 1997-2030
Credit No. 2135/CRG 8,525 8,579 2000-2030
Less repayments 2,216 6,309 1,888 6,691

$20,588 $21,698

The credits are subject to a service charge of%0.&r annum on amounts outstanding. In addition,
the credits totalling $43,159 (2010 - $43,431) espnting $28,200 Special Drawing Rights are
subject to a commitment fee not exceeding 0.5%apaum on amounts eligible for withdrawal but
remain undrawn.

2011 2010

Caribbean Development Bank

Technical assistance resources $211,560 $200,064
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CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL FUNDS RESOURCES - OTHER SPECIAL FUNDS

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF LOANS
December 31, 2011

(expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

C. Accumulated net income and net income for the year
It is normal for the Board of Governors to deterenthe disposition of the accumulated net income
and net income for the current year of each ofGleer Special Funds, subject to any rules and
regulations governing each Fund and any agreerkating thereto.

E. Loans

The average interest rate earned on loans outatamdis 2.16% (2010 — 2.17%). There were no
impaired loans at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

F. Accounts receivable

2011 2010
Accounts receivable $69,309 $63,607

G. Accounts payable including interfund payables
2011 2010
Accounts payable $3,173 $2,060
Interfund payables 5,876 6,783
Total $9,049 $8,843
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